Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. Form F-7 February 19, 2015

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 19, 2015

Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM F-7

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER THE

SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Ontario, Canada1000Not Applicable(Province or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)(Primary Standard Industrial
Classification Code Number)(I.R.S. Employer
Identification Number)

161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, P.O. Box 216, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 2S1

(416) 361-3562

(Address and telephone number of Registrant's principal executive offices)

Copies to:

Sander GrieveRichard B. RaymerBennett Jones LLPDorsey & Whitney LLP3400 One First Canadian Place, P.O. Box 130161 Bay Street, Suite 4310Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5X 1A4Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2S1(416) 777-4826(416) 367-7388

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale of the securities to the public:

As soon as practicable after this registration statement becomes effective.

This registration statement and any amendment thereto shall become effective upon filing with the Commission in accordance with Rule 467(a).

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to the home jurisdiction's shelf prospectus offering procedures, check the following box: "

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Proposed

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Maximum Offering Price per	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price (1)	Amount of Registration Fee (2)
Common Shares	23,761,783	Unit Cdn. \$4.00	U.S. \$76,313,342	U.S. \$8,867.61

(1) Based on the exchange rate of Cdn. \$1.00 to U.S. \$0.8029, the noon buying rate as reported by the Bank of Canada on February 18, 2015.

(2) Calculation of registration fee is in accordance with General Instruction II.F of Form F-7.

If, as a result of stock splits, stock dividends or similar transactions, the number of securities purported to be registered on this registration statement changes, the provisions of Rule 416 shall apply to this registration statement.

PART I

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

ITEM 1. HOME JURISDICTION DOCUMENT

Rights Offering Circular.

ITEM 2. INFORMATION LEGENDS

See the outside front cover page of the Rights Offering Circular.

ITEM 3. INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

Not applicable.

ITEM 4. LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED WITH THE COMMISSION

The Consent of Bennett Jones LLP has been filed with the SEC as a part of this Registration Statement.

PLEASE READ THIS DOCUMENT CAREFULLY AS IT REQUIRES YOU TO MAKE A DECISION PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. (TORONTO TIME) ON MARCH 30, 2015. IF YOU ARE IN DOUBT AS TO HOW TO DEAL WITH THIS DOCUMENT, YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR INVESTMENT DEALER, STOCKBROKER, BANK MANAGER OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISOR.

The offer of these securities is made in all provinces of Canada, with the exception of Quebec, in those states in the United States where an exemption from the applicable state securities laws is immediately available and in all jurisdictions (the "Offshore Jurisdictions") outside Canada and the United States excluding any jurisdiction that does not provide a rights offering prospectus exemption substantially similar to the exemption provided in Canada or that otherwise requires obtaining any approvals of a regulatory authority in the Offshore Jurisdiction or the filing of any document by Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. in the Offshore Jurisdictions in connection with this offering. No securities commission or similar authority in Canada has in any way passed upon the merits of the securities offered hereunder and any representation to the contrary is an offense. This offering is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any securities for sale in, or to any resident of, any other jurisdiction or a solicitation therein of any offer to buy any securities of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.

Rights Offering Circular February 18, 2015

Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.

Offering of Rights to Subscribe for Common Shares

Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. ("**MPV**" or the "**Corporation**") is issuing to the holders of its outstanding common shares (the "**Common Shares**" and each individually, a "**Common Share**") of record at the close of business on February 27, 2015 (the "**Record Date**") rights (each, a "**Right**") to subscribe for additional Common Shares (the "**Rights Shares**") on the terms set forth herein (the "**Rights Offering**" or the "**Offering**"). Rights will be evidenced by transferable rights certificates (each, a "**Rights Certificate**"). Each registered holder of Common Shares on the Record Date will receive one Right for each Common Share held. 5.69 Rights plus the sum of \$4.00 (the "**Subscription Price**") are required to subscribe for one Rights Share (the "**Basic Subscription Privilege**"). The Rights expire at 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) (the "**Rights Expiry Time**") on March 30, 2015 (the "**Rights Expiry Date**"), after which time unexercised Rights will be void and of no value.

The Rights are fully divisible and fully transferable into and within Canada by the holders thereof. The Rights may not be transferred to any person within the United States. Holders of Common Shares in the United States who receive

Rights may transfer or resell them only through the facilities of the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "**TSX**") in transactions that comply with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "**U.S. Securities Act**").

Entitlement to Rights: One Right for each Common Share held by the holder on the Record Date. Based on the number of issued and outstanding Common Shares on the date of this rights offering circular (the "**Rights Offering Circular**"), 135,204,550 Rights will be issued under the Rights Offering.

Subscription Price:	\$4.00 per Rights Share.
Record Date:	February 27, 2015.
Rights Expiry Date:	March 30, 2015.
Rights Expiry Time:	5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Rights Expiry Date.
Basic Subscription Privilege:	5.69 Rights will entitle the holder to subscribe for one Rights Share at the Subscription Price.
Additional Subscription Privilege:	Holders who exercise their Rights in full are entitled to subscribe for additional Rights Shares, if available as a result of unexercised Rights, at the Subscription Price. See " <i>Details of the Rights Offering – Additional Subscription Privilege</i> ".
Maximum Number of Common Shares Issuable:	A maximum of 23,761,783 Rights Shares will be issuable pursuant to the Rights Offering, representing approximately 17.57% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares on the date hereof. The maximum number of Rights Shares issuable is subject to adjustment for rounding and assuming no convertible securities are exercised into Common Shares before the Record Date.
Maximum Net Proceeds:	The Rights Offering will result in maximum proceeds of approximately \$95,047,135 from the sale of the Rights Shares, less estimated expenses of the Rights Offering in the amount of approximately \$75,000 and the Stand-By Fee. The maximum net proceeds are subject to adjustment for rounding and assuming no convertible securities are exercised into Common Shares before the Record Date.
Minimum Proceeds:	The completion of the Rights Offering is not conditional upon MPV receiving any minimum amount of subscriptions for the Rights Shares from shareholders of the Corporation (the "Shareholders").
Use of Proceeds:	The Corporation intends to use the net proceeds of the Rights Offering to fund the Overrun Facility (as defined herein). See " <i>Use of Proceeds</i> ".
Listing:	The Rights will be listed on the TSX under the symbol "MPV.RT" and will be posted for trading on the TSX until 12:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Rights Expiry Date at which time they will be halted for trading.
Stand-by Commitment:	Dermot Desmond has agreed to subscribe for, at the Subscription Price, those Rights Shares not otherwise subscribed for on the exercise of the Rights under the Basic Subscription Privilege and the Additional Subscription Privilege. See " <i>Stand-By Commitment</i> ".
Managing Dealer Fee and Soliciting Fees:	No managing dealer or soliciting dealer has been engaged in connection with this Offering.
Subscription Agent:	Computershare Investor Services Inc. (the " Subscription Agent " or " Computershare ") will act as the subscription agent for the Rights Offering and is also the registrar and transfer agent for the Common Shares.

United States Transfer Restrictions: The Rights may be transferred only through the facilities of the TSX in transactions that comply with Regulation S under the *U.S. Securities Act.* See "*U.S. Shareholders*".

- ii -

The foregoing is a summary only of the principal features of the Offering and should be read together with and is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Rights Offering Circular.

To subscribe for Rights Shares, a completed Rights Certificate and payment in full of the Subscription Price must be received by the Subscription Agent before the Rights Expiry Time. Rights not exercised before the Rights Expiry Time will be void and of no value. See "*How to Use the Rights Certificate*". No minimum amount is required to be raised in connection with the Rights Offering. The Subscription Agent will hold all subscription proceeds until the Rights Expiry Date whereupon the net subscription proceeds after payment of the expenses of the Rights Offering will be transferred to the Corporation.

The outstanding Common Shares are listed for trading on the TSX under the symbol "MPV". On February 17, 2015, being the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Offering, the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX was \$4.62 (the "**Closing Price**"). The Subscription Price of \$4.00 is equal to a discount of approximately 13.42% from the Closing Price and a discount of over 19.44% from the volume weighted average trading price of the Common Shares on the TSX for the preceding 20 trading days prior to the announcement of the Offering, which was \$4.96. The TSX has approved the listing of the Rights Shares issuable on the exercise of the Rights. The Corporation has made an additional listing application to the NASDAQ in order to approve the listing of the Rights Shares issuable on the exercise of the Rights. The Corporation expects to receive approval from the NASDAQ prior to the Rights Expiry Date. The Subscription Price was determined by the Corporation, having regards to regulatory requirements and to issues such as dilution, market price, market forces and the capital requirements of the Corporation.

If a holder of Common Shares wishes to retain that holder's current percentage ownership in the Corporation and assuming that all Rights are exercised, that holder should purchase all of the Rights Shares for which the holder may subscribe pursuant to the Rights delivered with this Rights Offering. If that holder does not do so and other Rights holders exercise all of their Rights, that holder's current percentage ownership in the Corporation will be diluted by the issue of Rights Shares under this Rights Offering.

The Rights are being offered in all provinces of Canada, with the exception of Quebec, in the United States and in eligible Offshore Jurisdictions (collectively, the "**Qualifying Jurisdictions**") provided that residents of such jurisdictions provide evidence satisfactory to the Corporation that it is not unlawful to participate in the Rights Offering. This Rights Offering Circular has not been filed with the securities commissions or similar regulatory authority of any jurisdiction other than the Qualifying Jurisdictions. The Rights and Rights Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights are not being offered, with limited exceptions, to persons who are or appear to be, or the Corporation or the Subscription Agent have reason to believe are, residents of jurisdictions other than the Qualifying Jurisdictions. See "*Details of the Rights Offering – Ineligible Shareholders*".

The Corporation will not issue fractional Rights Shares upon the exercise of Rights. Where the issuance of Rights would otherwise entitle the holder of Rights to fractional Rights Shares, the holder's entitlement will be reduced to the

next lowest whole number of Rights Shares, with no additional compensation. See "*How to Use the Rights Certificates* – *No Fractional Rights Shares*".

In this Circular, all references to "\$" are references to Canadian dollars and references to "US\$" are to United States dollars.

The offering is made by a Canadian issuer that is permitted, under a multijurisdictional disclosure system adopted by the United States, to prepare this circular in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Canada. Prospective investors should be aware that those requirements are different from those of the United States. Financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards, and are subject to Canadian auditing and auditor independence standards, and thus may not be comparable to financial statements of United States companies.

Prospective investors should be aware that the acquisition or disposition of the securities described in this circular may have tax consequences in Canada, the United States, or elsewhere. Such consequences for investors who are resident in, or citizens of, the United States are not described fully herein. The Canadian tax consequences of the acquisition, holding or disposition of the securities described in this circular, other than the Rights, to investors not resident in Canada may be significant and, in some circumstances, adverse. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors with respect to such tax considerations.

- iii -

The enforcement by investors of civil liabilities under United States federal securities laws may be adversely affected by the fact that the Corporation is incorporated under the laws of Ontario, that some or all of its officers and directors may be residents of a country other than the United States, that some or all of the experts named in this circular may be residents of Canada, and that all or a substantial portion of the assets of the Corporation and said persons may be located outside the United States.

Neither the Rights nor the Rights Shares have been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or any state securities commission and neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this circular. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Investment in the Rights and Rights Shares may be regarded as highly speculative due to the nature of the Corporation's business and should only be undertaken by those persons who can afford to lose their entire investment in the securities. See "*Risk Factors*". The registered and head office of the Corporation is located at 161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, PO Box 216, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1.

- iv -

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DOCUMENTS FILED WITH REGULATORY AUTHORITIES	
ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT	1
FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION	1
THE CORPORATION	2
Business of the Corporation	2
Gahcho Kué Project	2
Joint Venture	3
Corporate Structure	4
Recent Developments	4
DETAILS OF THE RIGHTS OFFERING	5
Eligible Shareholders	5
Basic Subscription Privilege	5
Additional Subscription Privilege	5
Non-Registered, Beneficial Shareholders	6
Rights Expiry Time	6
Rights Certificates	6
Delivery of Rights Certificates by Intermediaries	7
Ineligible Shareholders	7
Offshore Shareholders	8
U.S. Shareholders	8
Income Tax Consequences	8
HOW TO USE THE RIGHTS CERTIFICATE	9
General	9
Exercise of the Basic Subscription Privilege - Form 1	9
Exercise of the Additional Subscription Privilege - Form 2	9
Purchase, Sale or Transfer of Rights - Form 3	10
Dividing or Combining Rights Certificates - Form 4	11
Unexercised Rights	11
Signatures	11
Payment of Subscription Price	11
Delivery of Completed Rights Certificates	11
Reservation of Rights Shares	12
No Fractional Rights Shares	12
Determinations as to Validity of Subscription	12
Delivery of Rights Share Certificates	12
Acceptance by Book-Based Transfer in Canada	12

SUBSCRIPTION AGENT AND TRANSFER AGENT	13
INTENTION OF INSIDERS TO EXERCISE RIGHTS	13
DESCRIPTION OF THE CORPORATION'S SECURITIES	13
General	13
STAND-BY COMMITMENT	14
PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS	15
CHANGES OF OWNERSHIP	15
MANAGING DEALER FEE AND SOLICITING DEALER FEES	15
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	15

RISK FACTORS	16
Risk Factors Relating to MPV Risk Factors Relating to this Rights Offering	16 23
STATEMENT AS TO RESALE RESTRICTIONS	24
CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	25
Residents of Canada Non-Residents of Canada	26 27
CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	28
Scope of this Summary U.S. Holders Taxation of Rights Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules Taxation of Common Shares Additional Considerations	29 29 30 32 36 37
STATUTORY RIGHTS	39
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	39
INQUIRIES	40

- ii -

DOCUMENTS FILED WITH REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

For more information about the Corporation, Shareholders are referred to the documents filed with securities regulatory authorities in Canada and the United States. All continuous disclosure documents for the Corporation are available in Canada through the internet on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval ("**SEDAR**") at www.sedar.com and in the United States through the internet on EDGAR at www.sec.gov.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

In the opinion of Bennett Jones LLP, counsel to the Corporation, based on the provisions of the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and the regulations thereunder (collectively, the "**Tax Act**") in effect on the date hereof, the Rights and the Rights Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights would be, if issued on the date hereof, "qualified investments" as defined in the Tax Act for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans ("**RRSPs**"), registered retirement income funds ("**RRIFs**"), deferred profit sharing plans, registered education savings plans, registered disability savings plans and tax-free savings accounts ("**TFSAs**") under the Tax Act (collectively, "**Exempt Plans**") provided that the Rights and the Rights Shares issuable upon the exercise of the Rights are listed on a "designated stock exchange", as defined in the Tax Act (which currently includes the TSX).

Notwithstanding that the Rights and the Rights Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights may be qualified investments as described above, the holder of a trust governed by a TFSA or the annuitant under a RRSP or RRIF that holds Rights or Rights Shares will be subject to a penalty tax if such Rights or Rights Shares are a "prohibited investment" for the purposes of the Tax Act. The Rights and the Rights Shares will generally be a "prohibited investment" if the holder or the annuitant, as the case may be, does not deal at arm's length with the Corporation for the purposes of the Tax Act or the holder or the annuitant, as the case may be, has a "significant interest" (within the meaning of the Tax Act) in the Corporation or a corporation. **Prospective holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding their particular circumstances**.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This Rights Offering Circular contains certain forward-looking statements and forward-looking information (collectively referred to herein as "**forward-looking statements**") within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities laws and within the meaning of the "safe harbor" provisions of the *United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995*. All statements other than statements of historical fact are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements typically contain words such as "anticipate", "believe", "plan", "intend", "objective", "continuous", "ongoing", "estimate", "expect", "may", "will", "project", "should", or similar words suggesting future outcomes. In particular, this Rights Offering Circular contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:

•

•

•

•

•

•

anticipated maximum proceeds of the Offering;

timing of completion and other procedural matters associated with the Offering;

business operations;

intention of insiders to exercise Rights;

use of proceeds; and

certain other forward-looking statements as described below.

Forward-looking information respecting:

the anticipated maximum proceeds of the Offering is based upon the Subscription Price of \$4.00 and assumes that the maximum of 23,720,096 Rights Shares will be issued pursuant to the Rights Offering;

timing of completion and other procedural matters is based upon the terms of the Rights Offering Circular and advice received from counsel to the Corporation relating to such timing expectations;

business operations are based upon information provided by management of the Corporation;

the intention of insiders to exercise Rights is based upon information provided by the officers and directors of the Corporation; and

the expected use of proceeds is based on the Corporation's intentions on the date hereof and assumes certain levels of cash flow from operations.

Although management considers these assumptions to be reasonable based on information currently available to it, such forward-looking statements may prove to be incorrect. By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties (both general and specific) and risks that forward-looking statements will not be achieved. Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements, as a number of important factors could cause the actual results to differ materially from the beliefs, plans, objectives, expectations and anticipations, estimates and intentions expressed in the forward-looking statements contained in this Rights Offering Circular. The forward-looking statements contained in this Rights Offering Circular are made as of the date hereof and the Corporation does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or to revise any of the included forward-looking statements, except as required by applicable Canadian securities laws. The forward-looking statements contained herein are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement. See "*Risk Factors*".

THE CORPORATION

Business of the Corporation

The Corporation is a natural resource property exploration and development company. The Corporation's principal property is a 49% interest (including the 4.9% interest in the property held by Camphor) in the Gahcho Kué JV Property (the "**Property**" or the "**Project**" or the "**Gahcho Kué Project**") located in the Northwest Territories of Canada. The Property is the Corporation's only material property at this time. See "Gahcho Kué Project".

Drilling, bulk sampling, environmental and engineering studies have been completed. A definitive feasibility study demonstrated an economically viable project. Major construction and operating permits have been issued and full-scale construction is underway. At this time there are no revenues from the Project.

The Corporation is a corporation existing under the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario), domiciled in Canada. The Common Shares are listed on the TSX under the symbol "MPV" and on the NASDAQ under the symbol "MDM".

Gahcho Kué Project

The Project is located in the Northwest Territories, about 300 kilometres northeast of Yellowknife. The Project covers approximately 10,353 acres, and encompasses four mining leases (numbers 4341, 4199, 4200, and 4201) held in trust by the operator, De Beers. The Project hosts four primary kimberlite bodies – Hearne, Tuzo, Tesla, and 5034. The four main kimberlite bodies are within two kilometres of each other.

- 2 -

Joint Venture

The Gahcho Kué Project is an unincorporated joint arrangement between De Beers Canada (51%) and the Corporation (49%). The Corporation holds an undivided 49% ownership interest in the assets, liabilities and expenses of the Project.

On July 3, 2009, the Corporation entered into an amended and restated joint arrangement agreement (the "**JV Agreement**") with De Beers (jointly, the "**Participants**") under which:

(a) The Participants' continuing interests in the Gahcho Kué Project will be a 49% interest by the Corporation and a 51% interest by De Beers, except for normal dilution provisions which are applicable to both Participants;

(b) Each Participant will market their own proportionate share of diamond production in accordance with their participating interest;

(c) Each Participant will contribute their proportionate share to the future project development costs;

(d) Material strategic and operating decisions, including plans and budgets, will be made by consensus of the Participants as long as each Participant has a participating interest of 40% or more;

(e) The Participants have agreed that the sunk historic costs to the period ending on December 31, 2008 will be reduced and limited to \$120 million;

(f) accrued interest in settlement of the Corporation's share of the agreed historic sunk costs on the following schedule:

§ \$200,000 on execution of the JV Agreement (the Corporation's contribution to the 2009 Arrangement expenses to date of execution of the JV Agreement) – paid and expensed;

[§]Up to \$5.1 million in respect of De Beers' share of the costs of the feasibility study (paid – \$4,417,421 to December 31, 2012, included in "Mineral Properties"; no further payments are expected);

§ \$10 million upon the completion of a feasibility study with at least a 15% IRR and approval of the necessary development work for a mine (as defined in the JV Agreement) – paid March 15, 2011;

- § \$10 million following the issuance of the construction and operating permits (paid in October 2014);
 - § \$10 million following the commencement of commercial production; and

[§]The balance of approximately \$24.4 million plus accumulated interest within 18 months following commencement of commercial production. Accumulated interest is being calculated at the prevailing LIBOR rate plus 5%.

Mountain Province has agreed that the Corporation's marketing rights under the JV Agreement may be diluted if the Corporation defaults on the repayments described above, if and when such payments become due.

The JV Agreement's provision for consensus decision-making for material strategic and operating decisions provides the Corporation with joint control of the Project with De Beers, and the Corporation accounts for the Project as a joint operation.

- 3 -

Corporate Structure

Mountain Province Diamonds Inc., formerly Mountain Province Mining Inc., was formed on November 1, 1997 by the amalgamation of Mountain Province Mining Inc. ("**Old MPV**") and 444965 B.C. Ltd. ("**444965**"). Old MPV was incorporated under the laws of British Columbia on December 2, 1986 under the *British Columbia Company Act* and was engaged in the exploration of precious and base mineral resource properties until the date of the MPV Amalgamation.

The Corporation changed its name from "Mountain Province Mining Inc." to "Mountain Province Diamonds Inc." effective October 16, 2000. It commenced trading under its new name on the TSX on October 25, 2000.

On September 20, 2005, the Corporation's shareholders approved a special resolution for the continuance of the Corporation into Ontario, and the Corporation amended its articles and continued incorporation under the *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario), transferring from the *Company Act* (British Columbia).

On October 1, 2014, the Corporation's wholly-owned subsidiary, Camphor Ventures Inc. (formerly Sierra Madre Resources Inc.), amalgamated into the Corporation.

On October 2, 2014, 2235386 Ontario Inc. was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and, on October 3, 2014, 2435572 Ontario Inc. was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On October 3, 2014, the Company transferred the shares of 2235386 Ontario Inc. to 2435572 Ontario Inc.

The names of the Company's subsidiaries, their dates of incorporation and the jurisdictions in which they were incorporated are as follows:

Name of Subsidiary	Date of Incorporation	Jurisdiction of Incorporation
2235386 Ontario Inc.	October 2, 2014	Ontario, Canada
2435572 Ontario Inc.	October 3, 2014	Ontario, Canada

Recent Developments

On March 28, 2014, the Corporation completed a bought deal private placement of Common Shares for gross proceeds of \$17.85 million as well as a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares for gross proceeds of \$10.39 million. The Common Shares were issued at \$5.10 per Common Share under both private placements.

On April 2, 2014, the Corporation announced the results of a feasibility study on the Gahcho Kué Project. A technical report supporting the results of the feasibility study titled "Gahcho Kué Project: 2014 Feasibility Study, NI 43-101 Technical Report", dated May 13, 2014 as amended May 27, 2014 and with effective date March 31, 2014 (the "**Technical Report**") is available under the Corporation's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

On June 27, 2014, the Corporation completed a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares at a price of \$5.00 per Common Share for gross proceeds of \$45.5 million.

On July 28, 2014, the Corporation announced the appointment of three international banks to arrange and underwrite a senior secured term loan facility of up to US\$370 million (the "**Facility**") to fund the Corporation's share of construction costs of the Gahcho Kué Project under the Gahcho Kué Project joint venture.

On October 16, 2014, the Corporation completed a bought deal private placement of Common Shares at a price of \$5.00 per Common Share for gross proceeds of \$75 million as well as a non-brokered private placement of Common Shares at a price of \$5.00 per Common Share for gross proceeds of \$25 million.

On December 31, 2014, the Common Shares began trading on the NASDAQ under the symbol "MDM" and ceased trading on the NYSE MKT.

- 4 -

On January 8, 2015, the Corporation announced continued progress on arrangement of the previously announced Facility.

On February 3, 2015, the Corporation announced that the Corporation had received credit approval for the previously announced Facility. For reasons unrelated to the specifics of the transaction or the Gahcho Kué project, Deutsche Bank A.G. was replaced as a mandated lead arranger by the Bank of Nova Scotia ("**Scotiabank**"). Natixis S.A. and Nedbank Limited remain joint mandated lead arrangers with Scotiabank.

Finalization of the Facility is subject to customary conditions, including final documentation and syndication, and establishment of a cost overrun facility (the "**Overrun Facility**") of not less than US\$75 million (with at least US\$50 million to be in cash and up to US\$25 million to be funded by acceptable letters of credit). The Corporation proposes to fund the Overrun Facility through this Offering and to satisfy the remaining conditions prior to the end of March 2015.

DETAILS OF THE RIGHTS OFFERING

Eligible Shareholders

The Rights are being offered in all provinces of Canada, with the exception of Quebec, in the United States and in eligible Offshore Jurisdictions (collectively, the "**Qualifying Jurisdictions**") provided that residents of such jurisdictions provide evidence satisfactory to the Corporation that it is not unlawful to participate in the Rights Offering. Any holder of a Rights Certificate whose address of record is in a Qualifying Jurisdiction will be considered an "**Eligible Shareholder**" for the purposes of this Rights Offering.

Basic Subscription Privilege

Each registered holder of Common Shares of record at 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Record Date is entitled to receive one Right for each Common Share held. 5.69 Rights confer the right on the holder thereof to subscribe for one Rights Share at the price of \$4.00 per Rights Share (the "**Basic Subscription Privilege**") at or before the Rights Expiry Time.

The Subscription Price for the Rights was determined by the Corporation, having regards to regulatory requirements and to issues such as dilution, market price, market forces and the capital requirements of the Corporation. The total number of Rights Shares to be issued will depend on the demand from subscribers. The subscription for Rights Shares upon the exercise of Rights is voluntary. Holders of Rights should consult their own advisors with respect to the Offering.

Additional Subscription Privilege

Any Eligible Shareholder that has exercised the right to subscribe for all the Rights Shares for which it is entitled to subscribe, under the Rights evidenced by the applicable Rights Certificates, pursuant to the Basic Subscription Privilege, also has the right (the "Additional Subscription Privilege") to subscribe for additional Rights Shares, if available, at the Subscription Price. Additional Rights Shares will be allocated from those Rights Shares, if any, available as a result of Rights that are unexercised at the Rights Expiry Time. A holder who exercises the Additional Subscription Privilege will receive Rights Shares (the "Remaining Rights Shares") equal to the lesser of: (i) the number of Rights Shares that holder subscribes for under the Additional Subscription Privilege; and (ii) the number of Rights previously exercised by such holder under the Rights Offering divided by the aggregate number of Rights previously exercised under the Rights Offering by holders of Rights that have subscribed for Rights Shares under the Additional Subscription Privilege and the allocation of Remaining Rights Shares, see "How To Use The Rights Certificate – Additional Subscription Privilege – Form 2".

- 5 -

Non-Registered, Beneficial Shareholders

For Common Shares held through a securities broker or dealer, bank or trust company or other participant (a "CDS **Participant**") in the book-based system administered by CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. ("CDS"), a subscriber may subscribe for Rights Shares by instructing the CDS Participant holding the subscriber's Rights to exercise all or a specified number of such Rights and forwarding the Subscription Price for each Rights Share subscribed for to such CDS Participant in accordance with the terms of the Offering. A subscriber wishing to subscribe for Remaining Rights Shares pursuant to the Additional Subscription Privilege must forward its request to the CDS Participant that holds the subscriber's Rights prior to the Rights Expiry Time, along with payment for the number of Remaining Rights Shares requested. Any excess funds will be returned by mail or credited to the subscriber's account with its CDS Participant without interest or deduction. Subscriptions for Rights Shares made through a CDS Participant will be irrevocable and subscribers will be unable to withdraw their subscriptions for Rights Shares made through a CDS Participant will be irrevocable and subscribers will be unable to subscriptions and payment than the Rights Expiry Time.

Only registered Shareholders will be provided with Rights Certificates. For all non-registered, beneficial Shareholders who hold their Common Shares through a CDS Participant in the book-based systems administered by CDS, a global certificate representing the total number of Rights to which all such Shareholders as at the Record Date are entitled will be issued in registered form to, and deposited with, CDS. The Corporation expects that each beneficial Shareholder will receive a confirmation of the number of Rights issued to it from its CDS Participant in accordance with the practices and procedures of that CDS Participant. CDS will be responsible for establishing and maintaining book-entry accounts for CDS Participants holding Rights.

Shareholders who hold their Common Shares through a CDS Participant must arrange for exercises, purchases or transfers of Rights through their CDS Participant and should contact the CDS Participant to instruct them accordingly. It is anticipated by the Corporation that each purchaser of Rights or Rights Shares will receive a customer confirmation of issuance or purchase, as applicable, from the CDS Participant through which such Rights are issued or such Rights or Rights Shares are purchased in accordance with the practices and policies of such CDS Participant.

Neither the Corporation nor the Subscription Agent will have any liability for: (i) the records maintained by CDS or CDS Participants relating to the Rights or the book-entry accounts maintained by them; (ii) maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such Rights; or (iii) any advice or representations made or given by CDS or CDS Participants with respect to the rules and regulations of CDS or any action to be taken by CDS or their CDS Participants.

Rights Expiry Time

The Offering and the Rights evidenced by the Rights Certificates will expire at the Rights Expiry Time. The Corporation reserves the right to extend the period of this Offering, in its sole discretion, subject to obtaining any required regulatory approvals, if the Corporation determines that the timely exercise of the Rights may have been prejudiced due to disruption in postal service. **Rights not exercised by the Rights Expiry Time on the Rights Expiry Date will be void and of no value.**

Rights Certificates

The Rights are evidenced by transferable Rights Certificates. A Rights Certificate is being sent to each registered Shareholder of record as of the Record Date, other than those Shareholders whose addresses of record are not in any of the Qualifying Jurisdictions (the "**Ineligible Shareholders**") (see "*Details of the Rights Offering – Ineligible Shareholders*"), and is enclosed with this Rights Offering Circular. A register of holders of Rights Certificates will be maintained by the Subscription Agent. The Rights will be listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the trading symbol "MPV.RT" commencing two trading days prior to the Record Date and will remain listed and posted for trading until 12:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Rights Expiry Date. The Rights Shares underlying the Rights will also be listed on the TSX under the symbol "MPV" and on the NASDAQ under the symbol "MDM". If a Rights Certificate is lost, stolen or destroyed, a replacement Rights Certificate shall be issued only upon compliance with applicable statutory requirements and any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Corporation. The Subscription Agent should be contacted at the subscription office listed below under "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Delivery of Completed Rights Certificates*" in the event of the loss, theft or destruction of a Rights Certificate.

- 6 -

A Rights Certificate, by itself, does not confer the rights of a shareholder on the holder of such Rights Certificate.

Delivery of Rights Certificates by Intermediaries

Rights Certificates delivered to brokers, dealers or other intermediaries may not be delivered by those intermediaries to Ineligible Shareholders who beneficially own Common Shares (see "*Details of the Rights Offering – Ineligible Shareholders*"). Intermediaries receiving Rights Certificates that would otherwise be deliverable to Ineligible Shareholders should attempt to sell those Rights for the accounts of such Shareholders and should deliver any proceeds of sale to such Shareholders.

Ineligible Shareholders

This Rights Offering Circular has not been filed with the securities commissions or similar regulatory authority of any jurisdiction other than the Qualifying Jurisdictions. The Rights and Rights Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights are not being offered, with limited exceptions, to persons who are or appear to be, or the Corporation or the Subscription Agent have reason to believe are, residents of jurisdictions other than the Qualifying Jurisdictions, nor will the Corporation or Subscription Agent accept subscriptions from any Ineligible Shareholder or from any transferee of Rights who is or appears to be, or who the Corporation or the Subscription Agent have reason to believe is, a resident of any jurisdiction or place other than the Qualifying Jurisdictions unless such security holder or transferee satisfies the Corporation not less than 10 days before the Rights Expiry Date (and if the 10th day prior to the Rights Expiry Date is a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the City of Toronto, Province of Ontario, then such date shall be deemed to be the next business day following the 10th day prior to the Rights Expiry Date) that such offering to and subscription by such security holder or transferee is lawful and in compliance with all securities and other laws applicable in the Qualifying Jurisdictions and the jurisdiction where such security holder or transferee is resident and would not require the Corporation to file any documentation, make any application or pay any payment of any nature whatsoever.

Rights Certificates in respect of Rights issued to Ineligible Shareholders will not be issued and forwarded by the Corporation to Ineligible Shareholders. Ineligible Shareholders will be sent a Rights Offering Circular for information purposes only together with a letter advising them that their Rights Certificates will be issued to and held by the Subscription Agent, which will hold such Rights as agent for the benefit of all Ineligible Shareholders. Instructions as to the sale, transfer or exercise of the Rights represented thereby will not be accepted from such Shareholders (unless such holders satisfy the Corporation that the offer of Rights to, and subscriptions by, such holders is lawful and in compliance with all securities and other laws as described above). Commencing on the 10th day prior to the Rights Expiry Date (and if the 10th day prior to the Rights Expiry Date is a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in the City of Toronto, Province of Ontario, then such date shall be deemed to be the next business day following the 10th day prior to the Rights Expiry Date), the Subscription Agent will use its best efforts to sell the Rights evidenced by such Rights Certificates on behalf of all such respective holders at such prices and otherwise in such manner as the

Subscription Agent may determine, in its sole discretion. No charge will be made for the sale of Rights by the Subscription Agent except for a proportionate share of any brokerage commissions incurred by the Subscription Agent and the costs of or incurred by the Subscription Agent in connection with sale of the Rights. The net proceeds (less any applicable withholding tax) of such sale will be divided amongst such holders in proportion to the number of Common Shares held by them respectively on the Record Date, provided the net proceeds attributable to such holder equals or exceeds \$10. In the event that the net proceeds attributable to any Ineligible Shareholder is less than \$10, then no monies will be paid or delivered to such Ineligible Shareholder and, in such event, the monies will be delivered to the Corporation and the Corporation and the Subscription Agent will have no further obligations to such Ineligible Shareholder whatsoever.

The Subscription Agent's ability to sell the Rights of Ineligible Shareholders, and the price obtained therefor, are dependent on market conditions. The Subscription Agent will not be subject to any liability for failure to sell any Rights of Ineligible Shareholders at a particular price or at all. The Subscription Agent will act in its capacity as agent of the Ineligible Shareholders on a reasonable commercial efforts basis only and neither the Corporation nor the Subscription Agent will accept responsibility for the price obtained on the sale or the inability to sell the Rights on behalf of any Ineligible Shareholder.

- 7 -

There is a risk that the proceeds received from the sale of Rights will not exceed the costs of or incurred by the Subscription Agent in connection with the sale of such Rights and if applicable, the Canadian tax required to be withheld. In such event, no proceeds will be forwarded.

Shareholders will be presumed to be resident in the place of their registered address, unless the contrary is shown to the satisfaction of the Corporation. A registered Ineligible Shareholder whose address of record is outside the Qualifying Jurisdictions but who holds Common Shares on behalf of a holder who is eligible to participate in the Offering must notify the Corporation and the Subscription Agent, in writing, on or before the tenth day prior to the Rights Expiry Date if such beneficial holder wishes to participate in the Offering. Otherwise, the Subscription Agent will sell the Rights of such Shareholder as described above. Rights delivered to brokers, dealers or other intermediaries may not be delivered by those intermediaries to beneficial Shareholders who are resident in a jurisdiction outside of a Qualifying Jurisdiction. Intermediaries receiving Rights that would otherwise be deliverable to Ineligible Shareholders may attempt to sell those rights for the accounts of such Ineligible Shareholders and should deliver the proceeds of sale to such persons.

Offshore Shareholders

Any shareholder who is resident in or otherwise subject to the laws of a jurisdiction outside Canada and the United States who wishes to exercise the Rights represented by their Rights Certificate will be required to make the certification (included in the packages mailed to those offshore shareholders) that such offshore shareholder's applicable Offshore Jurisdiction provides a rights offering prospectus exemption substantially similar to the exemption provided in Canada or does not otherwise require obtaining any approvals of a regulatory authority in the Offshore Jurisdiction or the filing of any documents by MPV in such Offshore Jurisdiction in connection with the Rights Offering (the "Offshore Exemption Confirmation"). Offshore shareholders should consult their own legal counsel in their applicable Offshore Jurisdiction in connection with any Offshore Exemption Confirmation.

U.S. Shareholders

The offering of Rights and Rights Shares issuable on exercise thereof, to or for the account of residents of the United States (the "**U.S. Shareholders**") is subject to various provisions of United States securities laws, and is being made only to holders of Common Shares as of the Record Date. The Rights Shares issuable to such persons upon exercise of Rights will be registered on Form F-7 under the U.S. Securities Act, and such Rights Shares will not be subject to transfer restrictions under the U.S. Securities Act, except for restrictions applicable to "affiliates" of the Corporation, as such term is defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

The Rights are "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144 under the U.S. Securities Act and may be transferred outside the United States only through the facilities of the TSX in transactions that comply with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, which will permit the resale of the Rights by a Rights holder through the facilities of the TSX, provided that the offer is not made to a person in the United States, neither the seller nor any person acting on its behalf knows that the transaction has been prearranged with a buyer in the United States, and no "directed selling efforts", as that term is defined in Regulation S, are conducted in the United States in connection with the resale. In order to enforce this resale restriction, a Rights holder thereof will be required to execute a declaration certifying that such sale is being made outside the United States through the facilities of the TSX in accordance with Regulation S, which is included as part of Form 3 of the Rights Certificate. See "*Purchase, Sale or Transfer of Rights - Form 3*".

Income Tax Consequences

The income tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of a Right or the Rights Shares acquired upon exercise of a Right may vary according to the status of the investor, the jurisdiction which he resides or carries on business and his own particular circumstances. See "Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations" and "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations". Each investor should seek independent advice regarding such tax consequences based on his own particular circumstances.

HOW TO USE THE RIGHTS CERTIFICATE

General

By completing the appropriate form on the Rights Certificate in accordance with the instructions below, a Rights holder may:

	(a)	subscribe for	Rights Shares under the Basic Subscription Privilege (Form 1);
(b)		subscribe for Remaining	Rights Shares under the Additional Subscription Privilege (Form 2);
		(c)	sell or transfer Rights (Form 3); or
		(d) d	livide, combine or exchange a Rights Certificate (Form 4).

Exercise of the Basic Subscription Privilege - Form 1

The payment of the Subscription Price and 5.69 Rights are required to subscribe for one Rights Share. To determine the number of Rights Shares which may be subscribed for pursuant to the Basic Subscription Privilege, divide the number of Rights set forth on the face of the Rights Certificate by 5.69 (see "*Details of the Rights Offering – Basic Subscription Privilege*"). The holder of a Rights Certificate may subscribe for all of or any lesser number of Rights Shares for which the Rights Certificate entitles the holder to subscribe by completing and executing Form 1 on the Rights Certificate and delivering the Rights Certificate, together with payment in full of the Subscription Price in Canadian funds by certified cheque, bank draft or money order payable to the order of Computershare Investor Services Inc. for those Rights Shares subscribed for, to the Subscription Agent as specified under "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Delivery of Completed Rights Certificates*". Subscriptions may not be revoked after delivery to the Subscription Agent.

Completion of Form 1 constitutes a representation that the holder is not an Ineligible Shareholder.

Exercise of the Additional Subscription Privilege - Form 2

Subscribing for Remaining Rights Shares

In order to exercise the Additional Subscription Privilege, any holder of a Rights Certificate who completes Form 1 of the Rights Certificate for the maximum number of Rights Shares that can be subscribed for given the number of Rights evidenced by such certificate, must also complete Form 2 on the face of the Rights Certificate and specify the number of Remaining Rights Shares desired to be subscribed for. When the subscriber delivers to the Subscription Agent the completed Rights Certificate and payment for the Rights Shares initially subscribed for under Form 1, payment in the manner described under "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Payment of Subscription Price*" must also be enclosed for the Remaining Rights Shares subscribed for under Form 2 pursuant to the Additional Subscription Privilege, failing which such additional subscription shall be invalid. Funds received as payment of the Subscription Price for subscription Agent pending allocation of any Remaining Rights Shares pursuant to the Additional Subscription Privilege. The Additional Subscription Privilege will only be available to Eligible Shareholders.

Allocation of Remaining Rights Shares

If there are sufficient Remaining Rights Shares to satisfy all additional subscriptions by participants in the Additional Subscription Privilege, each participant will be allotted the total number of Remaining Rights Shares subscribed for.

- 9 -

If the aggregate number of Rights Shares subscribed for under the Additional Subscription Privilege exceeds the number of Remaining Rights Shares, the Remaining Rights Shares will be allotted to each participant in the Additional Subscription Privilege on a proportionate basis in accordance with the following formula: the number of the Remaining Rights Shares allotted to each participant in the Additional Subscription Privilege will be the lesser of:

(a) the number of Remaining Rights Shares which that holder has subscribed for under the Additional Subscription Privilege; and

the product (disregarding fractions) obtained by multiplying the aggregate number of Remaining Rights Shares by a fraction of which the numerator is the number of Rights Shares subscribed for by that holder under the Basic Subscription Privilege and the denominator is the aggregate number of Rights Shares subscribed for under the Basic Subscription Privilege by all participants in the Additional Subscription Privilege.

If any participant has subscribed for fewer Rights Shares than the number resulting from the application of the formula in (b) above, the excess Rights Shares will be allotted in a similar manner among the participants who were allotted fewer Remaining Rights Shares than they subscribed for.

If as a result of the application of the foregoing formula, a participant in the Additional Subscription Privilege is allotted a number of Remaining Rights Shares which falls short of the number specified in Form 2 on the face of the participant's Rights Certificate, the Subscription Agent will, when mailing the certificates for the Rights Shares issued to the participant, refund, without interest or any additional costs, the excess portion of the total Subscription Price paid by the participant.

Purchase, Sale or Transfer of Rights - Form 3

The Rights Certificates will be in registered form. The Rights will be listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the trading symbol "MPV.RT" commencing two trading days prior to the Record Date and will remain listed and posted for trading until 12:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on the Rights Expiry Date.

The Rights may be transferred only through the facilities of the TSX in transactions that comply with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, which will permit the resale of the Rights by a Rights holder through the facilities of the TSX, provided that the offer is not made to a person in the United States, neither the seller nor any person acting on its behalf knows that the transaction has been prearranged with a buyer in the United States, and no "directed selling efforts", as that term is defined in Regulation S, are conducted in the United States in connection with the resale. Certain additional conditions are applicable to the Corporation's "affiliates", as that term is defined under the U.S. Securities Act. In order to enforce this resale restriction, a Rights holder thereof will be required to execute a

declaration certifying that such sale is being made through the facilities of the TSX in accordance with Regulation S.

A Rights holder, in lieu of exercising Rights to subscribe for Rights Shares, may sell or transfer the Rights through the facilities of the TSX personally or through the usual investment channels, such as investment dealers or brokers by completing the Form 3 on the face of the Rights Certificate and delivering the Rights Certificate to the purchaser (transferee). Rights Certificates will not be registered in the name of an Ineligible Shareholder. The transferee may exercise all of the Rights of the transferring holder without obtaining a new Rights Certificate. If a Rights Certificate is transferred in blank, the Corporation and the Subscription Agent may thereafter treat the bearer as the absolute owner of the Rights Certificate for all purposes and neither the Corporation nor the Subscription Agent will be affected by any notice to the contrary.

Sales or transfers should be done in ample time for the new Rights Certificates to be issued and used before the Rights Expiry Time.

- 10 -

Dividing or Combining Rights Certificates - Form 4

A Rights Certificate may be exchanged for two or more Rights Certificates, and two or more Rights Certificates may be exchanged for a single new Rights Certificate. In each case, the new Rights Certificate(s) will represent a whole number of Rights aggregating the same number of whole Rights as were evidenced by the original Rights Certificate(s). Such an exchange may be effected by completing Form 4 as printed on the Rights Certificate and surrendering it to the Subscription Agent at either office as indicated under "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Delivery of Completed Rights Certificates*". This should be done in ample time for the new Rights Certificates to be issued and used before the Rights Expiry Time.

Unexercised Rights

A subscriber who exercises some, but not all, of the Rights evidenced by a Rights Certificate, will be deemed to have elected not to exercise the balance of the Rights evidenced by such Rights Certificate, which will be void and of no value, unless that subscriber elects to divide the Rights Certificate by completing Form 4 (see "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Dividing or Combining Rights Certificates – Form 4*").

Signatures

When the original holder signs any form on the Rights Certificate, the signature must correspond in every particular with the name of the holder as it appears on the face of the Rights Certificate. If the Rights Certificate is transferred (see "*How to Use the Rights Certificate – Purchase, Sale or Transfer of Rights – Form 3*") the signature of the transferor must be guaranteed by a Canadian Schedule 1 chartered bank or eligible guarantor institution with membership in an approved signature medallion program.

If a Rights Certificate is issued to or transferred to two or more persons who hold the Rights evidenced thereby jointly, the signatures of all such joint holders shall be required on the appropriate forms in order to exercise the Basic Subscription Privilege and, if applicable, the Additional Subscription Privilege, or to sell or transfer Rights.

If a form on the Rights Certificate is signed by a trustee, executor or administrator, by an officer of a corporation or by any person acting in a representative capacity, the Rights Certificate must be accompanied by evidence satisfactory to the Subscription Agent of authority to so sign. Such evidence would consist of, in the case of a corporation, a certified extract from the by-laws or a certified copy of a board resolution granting authority to certain officers to sell, assign and transfer securities registered in its name, together with a certificate of the corporate secretary identifying the

authorized officers. In the case of a trustee, executor or administrator, or by any person acting in a legal representative capacity, such evidence would consist of appropriate proof of appointment.

Payment of Subscription Price

The Subscription Price for all the Rights Shares subscribed for, including those subscribed for under the Additional Subscription Privilege, must be paid in Canadian funds by certified cheque, bank draft or money order payable to the order of "Computershare Investor Services Inc.".

Delivery of Completed Rights Certificates

Subscribers should deliver the completed Rights Certificates by registered mail, hand delivery or courier to the Subscription Agent at the following address:

Computershare Investor Services Inc.

100 University Avenue

8th Floor

Toronto, Ontario

M5J 2Y1

Attention: Corporate Actions

- 11 -

In case of postal service interruption, subscribers should deliver the Rights Certificates by hand or by courier to the address noted above.

The method of delivery of a Rights Certificate is at the option and risk of the person effecting the same. MPV recommends that Rights Certificates be delivered by hand or, if mailed, sent by registered mail.

Reservation of Rights Shares

The Corporation will, at all times, reserve a sufficient number of its Rights Shares to permit the exercise of all of the Rights.

No Fractional Rights Shares

The Corporation will not issue fractional Rights Shares upon the exercise of Rights. Where the issuance of Rights would otherwise entitle the holder of Rights to fractional Rights Shares, the holder's entitlement will be reduced to the next lowest whole number of Rights Shares, with no additional compensation.

Determinations as to Validity of Subscription

All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance of any subscription or request for transfer will be determined by MPV, in its sole discretion, whose determination shall be final and binding. All subscriptions are irrevocable. MPV reserves the absolute right to reject any subscription if such subscription is not in proper form or if the acceptance thereof or the issuance of Rights Shares pursuant thereto could be deemed unlawful. The Corporation also reserves the right to waive any defect with regard to any particular subscription. Neither the Corporation nor Computershare will be under any duty to give any notification of any defect or irregularity in such subscriptions nor shall either of them incur any liability for failure to give such notification.

Delivery of Rights Share Certificates

Certificates for the Rights Shares subscribed for in accordance with this Offering, will be registered in the name of and mailed to the address of the subscriber as stated on the Rights Certificate, unless otherwise directed, as soon as practicable following the Rights Expiry Time.

Acceptance by Book-Based Transfer in Canada

Beneficial Shareholders in the Qualifying Jurisdictions may also accept the Offering in the Qualifying Jurisdictions by following the procedures for book-based transfer, provided that a confirmation of the book-based transfer of their Rights through CDS on-line tendering system into the Subscription Agent's account at CDS is received by the Subscription Agent at its office in Toronto, Ontario prior to the Rights Expiry Time. The Subscription Agent has established an account at CDS for the purpose of the Offering. Any financial institution that is a participant in CDS may cause CDS to make a book-based transfer of a holder's Rights into the Subscription Agent's account in accordance with CDS procedures for such transfer. Delivery of Rights using the CDS book-based transfer system will constitute a valid tender under the Offering.

Beneficial shareholders in the Qualifying Jurisdictions, through their respective CDS Participants, who utilize the CDS on-line system to accept the Offering through a book-based transfer of their Rights into the Subscription Agent's account with CDS are deemed to have completed a Rights Certificate and therefore such instructions received by the Subscription Agent are considered as a valid tender in accordance with the terms of the Offering. Registered Shareholders must exercise their Rights in accordance with the procedures set out in "*How to Use the Rights Certificate*".

- 12 -

SUBSCRIPTION AGENT AND TRANSFER AGENT

The Subscription Agent has been appointed to receive subscriptions and payments from holders of Rights and to perform the services relating to the exercise and transfer of the Rights. The following office of the Subscription Agent has been appointed to perform these services:

Computershare Investor Services Inc.

100 University Avenue

8th Floor

Toronto, Ontario

M5J 2Y1

Attention: Corporate Actions

The Corporation will pay the fees and expenses of the Subscription Agent in respect of such services. The Subscription Agent, through its offices at Toronto, Ontario, is the transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares.

INTENTION OF INSIDERS TO EXERCISE RIGHTS

Other than Dermot Desmond, no insiders of the Corporation have advised the Corporation that they intend to exercise all of the Rights they receive under this Offering. The only commitment to exercise Rights under the Offering has been made, pursuant to the Stand-By Agreement, by Dermot Desmond, who directly and indirectly owns 30,896,681 Common Shares (approximately 22.85% of the outstanding Common Shares). See *"Stand-By Commitment"*.

Shareholders should be aware that the directors and officers of MPV and their associates, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, an aggregate of approximately 2,379,415 Common Shares representing approximately 1.76% of the outstanding Common Shares.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of MPV, as at the date hereof, no person or company beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, voting securities of the Corporation

carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Corporation other than as disclosed above, which is based on the information disclosed on the System for Electronic Disclosure by Insiders ("**SEDI**") at www.sedi.ca. For further information concerning the sole shareholder of the Corporation who holds in excess of 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, see "*Principal Shareholders*".

Should the directors, officers and other insiders of the Corporation purchase the maximum number of Rights Shares issuable pursuant to the Offering and Remaining Rights Shares pursuant to the Additional Subscription Privilege, the directors, officers and other insiders of MPV may increase their respective percentage ownership of the outstanding Common Shares following completion of this Offering.

Even if the directors, officers and other insiders of the Corporation do not participate in the Rights Offering, such insiders may increase their respective percentage ownership of the outstanding Common Shares following completion of the Offering.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CORPORATION'S SECURITIES

General

The Corporation's authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares without par value. As at the date hereof, there were 135,204,550 Common Shares issued and outstanding, all of which are fully paid and non-assessable and 1,400,000 Common Shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the Corporation's currently outstanding stock options granted under the Corporation's stock option plan. The following summary of certain material terms of the Corporation's Common Shares does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, all of the provisions of the Corporation's articles and applicable by-laws. Copies of the Corporation's articles are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

- 13 -

Dividends. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by the board of directors of the Corporation. The *Business Corporations Act* (Ontario) provides that a corporation may not declare or pay a dividend if there are reasonable grounds for believing that: (a) the corporation is, or would after the payment of the dividend, be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realizable value of the corporation's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of, (i) its liabilities, and (ii) its stated capital of all classes.

Voting. Shareholders are entitled to receive notice of and to attend at all meetings of the Shareholders and are entitled to one vote for each Common Share on all matters voted on by Shareholders, including the election of directors.

The Common Shares do not by their terms carry any pre-emptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights.

STAND-BY COMMITMENT

Dermot Desmond (the "**Guarantor**") will, on the closing date of the Rights Offering, purchase 100% of the Rights Shares, issuable under the Rights Offering, which remain unsubscribed for by holders of Rights under the Basic Subscription Privilege and the Additional Subscription Privilege, at the Subscription Price, and has entered into a stand-by commitment agreement (the "**Stand-By Agreement**") with the Corporation. Subject to and in accordance with the terms of the Stand-By Agreement, on the closing date of the Rights Offering, the Guarantor will pay in immediately available funds by wire transfer to an account designated by the Corporation, or by certified cheque payable to the Corporation or its counsel, the aggregate Subscription Price that is payable for the Rights Shares which remain unsubscribed for to be purchased by the Guarantor, and the Corporation will issue the Rights Shares to the Guarantor and deliver the certificate(s) representing such Rights Shares as soon as practicable thereafter.

Pursuant to the terms of the Stand-By Agreement, the Guarantor will be entitled by giving written notice to the Corporation at any time prior to the Rights Expiry Time, to terminate and cancel, without any liability on its part, its obligations under the Stand-By Agreement, if,

any inquiry, investigation (whether formal or informal) or other proceeding is commenced by a governmental entity pursuant to applicable laws in relation to the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries or in relation to any of the Corporation's directors and officers, any of which suspends or ceases trading in any of the Rights or Rights Shares or operates to prevent or restrict the lawful distribution any of the Rights or Rights Shares;

if any order is issued by a governmental entity, or if there is any change of law, either of which suspends or ceases (b)trading in any of the Rights or Rights Shares or operates to prevent or restrict the lawful distribution of any of the Rights or Rights Shares;

(c) any Material Adverse Change (as defined in the Stand-By Agreement) occurs at any time following the execution of the Stand-By Agreement by the Guarantor;

(d) the Corporation fails to obtain any necessary approvals concerning the Rights or the Rights Shares from the TSX or the applicable Canadian securities regulatory authorities;

(e) the Common Shares or the Rights are de-listed or suspended or halted for trading for a period greater than five business days for any reason by the TSX at any time prior to the closing of the Rights Offering;

(f) the conditions to the obligations of the Guarantor under the Stand-By Agreement have not been fulfilled on or before the closing date of the Rights Offering; or

- 14 -

(g) if the Rights Offering is otherwise terminated or cancelled or the closing of the Rights Offering has not occurred on or before April 15, 2015.

As of the date of this Circular, the Guarantor directly and indirectly holds 30,896,681 Common Shares, representing approximately 22.85% of the outstanding Common Shares and the maximum number of Rights Shares that the Guarantor may acquire pursuant to the stand-by commitment is 23,761,783, being the aggregate number of Rights Shares issuable under the Offering. Assuming the Guarantor acquires the maximum number of Rights Shares pursuant to the stand-by commitment of \$4,658,464\$ Common Shares, representing 34.38% of the outstanding Common Shares upon completion of the Offering.

As compensation for performing its obligations under the Stand-by Agreement, the Corporation will pay to the Guarantor a fee (the "**Stand-By Fee**") equal to 3.0% of the aggregate Subscription Price to be paid for the 23,761,783 Rights Shares to be issued through the Rights Offering, which Stand-By Fee may be paid by the Corporation to the Guarantor in cash or, if agreed to by the Corporation and the Guarantor, and subject to TSX approval and the approval of Shareholders, in Common Shares.

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of MPV, as at the date hereof, no person or company beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over, voting securities of the Corporation carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to any class of voting securities of the Corporation except as set out in the table below:

Name of the Holder	Number of Common	Percentage of Common	
	Shares ⁽¹⁾	Shares	
Dermot Desmond	30,896,681	22.85	%

Note:

(1) Information obtained from reports filed on SEDI at www.sedi.ca.

CHANGES OF OWNERSHIP

To the knowledge of the directors and officers of MPV, there have been no issuances or transfers of securities of the Corporation that have materially affected the control of MPV since December 31, 2013.

MANAGING DEALER FEE AND SOLICITING DEALER FEES

The Corporation has not retained any party to solicit subscriptions for Rights Shares pursuant to the Offering.

USE OF PROCEEDS

In the event that the Rights Offering is fully subscribed, the Corporation will receive gross proceeds of approximately \$95,047,135 (subject to adjustment for rounding and assuming no convertible securities of the Corporation are exercised prior to the Record Date) and net proceeds of approximately \$92,120,721 after deducting expenses of the issue estimated at \$75,000 and the Stand-By Fee. The completion of the Rights Offering is not conditional upon the Corporation receiving any minimum amount of subscriptions from Shareholders.

The net proceeds from the Rights Offering will be used by the Corporation to fund the Overrun Facility.

The Corporation intends to spend the available funds as set forth above. However, there may be circumstances where, for sound business reasons, a reallocation of the available funds may be necessary. In any event, the available funds will be used by the Corporation in furtherance of its business. See *"Forward-Looking Information"* and *"Risk Factors"*.

- 15 -

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the Corporation and De Beers have begun development work at the Project. The Project costs attributable to the Corporation under the JV Agreement are summarized below together with the funding sources of the Corporation. The Corporation's contribution to the Project is to be funded primarily by way of the Facility, and the Overrun Facility is to be funded by way of this Offering. Finalization of the Facility is subject customary conditions, including final documentation and syndication, and establishment of the Overrun Facility. For further information regarding the Project and the Project costs, please see the Technical Report, which is available under the Corporation's profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. See "*Forward-Looking Information*" and "*Risk Factors*".

	Total	2014	2015	2016	January 2017
Estimated Project Costs, incl ramp up costs (\$)	497,395,296	103,669,401	216,177,290	167,908,559	9,640,047
Management fee (\$) Payment De Beers (\$) LOC payments (\$) G&A (\$)	14,921,859 10,000,000 1,375,700 10,258,250	3,110,082 10,000,000 - 3,327,000	6,485,319 - \$567,200 3,327,000	5,037,257 - 808,500 3,327,000	289,201 - - 277,250
Total (\$)	533,951,105	120,106,483	226,556,809	177,081,316	10,206,498
Amounts expended (\$) To be funded (\$)	(120,106,483) 413,844,623	(120,106,483)	226,556,809	177,081,316	10,206,498
Budgeted exchange rate as per financial model (\$/US\$)	1.109	1.109	1.109	1.109	1.109
Total to fund (US\$) Cash on hand (US\$)	373,169,182 (59,523,810)	-	204,289,278 (59,523,810)	159,676,570 -	9,203,334 -
Project debt financing, excl interest and fees (approx.) (US\$)	313,645,372	-	144,765,468	159,676,570	9,203,334
Total project finance incl capitalized interest and fees (US\$)	370,000,000				

In the event that the Facility is not completed as anticipated by the Corporation, the net proceeds of the Offering, together with funds spent by the Corporation to date in 2015, will see the Project through the purchase and delivery to site of substantially all plant and equipment required for the completion of construction of the Project, and will include providing for completion of the 2015 ice road, concrete works and all fuel required for 2015. The next phase of plant completion, including the completion of the emulsion plant, truck shop, process plant mechanical completion through to commissioning commencement will, in the event that Facility is not completed, be subject to the ability to raise further debt or equity capital.

T

An investment in the Corporation's securities involves a significant degree of risk and should be considered speculative due, generally, to the nature of the business in which the Corporation is engaged, the limited extent of the Corporation's assets, the Corporation's state of development and the degree of its reliance upon the expertise of management. Prospective investors should carefully review the following factors, together with other information contained or referred to in this Rights Offering Circular, before making an investment decision.

Risk Factors Relating to MPV

The Corporation's limited operating history makes it difficult to evaluate the Corporation's current business and forecast future results.

The Corporation has only a limited operating history on which to base an evaluation of the Corporation's current business and prospects, each of which should be considered in light of the risks, expenses and problems frequently encountered in the early stages of growth of all companies, and in mining companies in particular.

The Corporation has not commenced commercial operation and is still in the development stage of the Gahcho Kué Project. The Corporation's mining operations may not be successful. As a result of this limited operating history, period-to-period comparisons of the Corporation's operating results may not be meaningful and the results for any particular period should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance.

- 16 -

The diamond mining business is speculative and the Corporation may not be successful in implementing its plans to establish a successful and profitable diamond mining business.

Resource exploration and possible development is a speculative business, characterized by a number of significant risks including, among other things, unprofitable efforts resulting not only from the failure to discover mineral deposits but from finding mineral deposits which, though present, are insufficient in quantity and quality to return a profit from production. Diamonds acquired or discovered by the Corporation may be required to be sold at a price which is reflective of the market at that time.

The Corporation has no significant source of operating cash flow and failure to generate revenues in the future could cause the Corporation to go out of business.

The Corporation currently has no significant source of operating cash flow. The Corporation has limited financial resources. The Corporation's ability to achieve and maintain profitability and positive cash flow is dependent upon the Corporation's ability to generate revenues. The Corporation's current operations do not generate any revenues and the Corporation's annual operating costs, excluding its share of costs of the Gahcho Kué Project, are approximately \$2.5 million.

The Corporation is in the development stage for the Gahcho Kué Project and may never become profitable.

The Corporation's Gahcho Kué Project is in the construction stage. The Corporation's proposed mining operations may never become profitable. Drilling of the 5034, Hearne, and Tuzo kimberlite pipes has been extensive and is completed for purposes for the development of the mine. Reserves have been established through the Feasibility Study but the construction of the mine is still underway. Estimates of mineral deposits, development plans and production costs, when made, can be affected by such factors as environmental permit regulations and requirements, weather, environmental factors, unforeseen technical difficulties, unusual or unexpected geological formations and work interruptions. In addition, the grade of diamonds ultimately discovered may differ from that indicated by bulk sampling results. Mine plans and processing concepts that have been developed are not necessarily final.

The preliminary process testing may not be accurate in predicting the actual presence and recoverability of diamonds on Corporation properties.

Process testing is limited to small scale testing based on a number of laboratory test programs, trade-off studies and design evaluations. There can be no assurance that diamonds recovered in small scale tests will be duplicated in large

scale tests under on-site conditions or in production scale. Difficulties may be experienced in obtaining the expected diamond recoveries when scaling up to a production scale process plant.

The Corporation has a history of losses and is likely to continue to incur losses for the foreseeable future.

The Corporation has a history of losses and is likely to continue to incur losses for the foreseeable future. During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the nine-month period ending September 30, 2014, the Corporation incurred net losses or earnings as follows:

\$3,935,648 loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2014;

\$26,603,938 loss for the year ended December 31, 2013; and

\$3,337,610 loss for the year ended December 31, 2012.

As of September 30, 2014, the Corporation had an accumulated deficit of \$124,753,281. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will ever be profitable.

None of the Corporation's properties have advanced to the commercial production stage, and the Corporation has no history of earnings or cash flow from operations and, as an exploration and development company, has only a history of losses.

- 17 -

.

.

•

The Corporation may never recover the amounts it has capitalized for mineral property costs.

The recoverability of the amounts capitalized for mineral properties in the Corporation's consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, is dependent upon the ability of the Corporation to complete exploration and development, the discovery of economically recoverable reserves, and, if warranted, upon future profitable production or proceeds from disposition of some or all of the Corporation's mineral properties.

The Corporation's failure to generate revenues in the future could cause the Corporation to go out of business.

As of September 30, 2014, the Corporation had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately \$36.7 million and working capital of approximately \$1,989,043. During the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Corporation used approximately \$46.4 million in cash flows in operating activities including approximately \$32.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2013, and \$13.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

In order to advance the Gahcho Kué Project, the Corporation will be required to raise additional capital through equity and/or debt financings on terms that may be dilutive to its shareholders' interests in the Corporation and the value of their Common Shares. The Corporation may consider debt financing, joint ventures, production sharing arrangements, disposing of properties or other arrangements to meet its capital requirements in the future. Such arrangements may have a material adverse affect on the Corporation's business or results of operations. As well, there is no guarantee that the Corporation will be able to raise additional capital, or to raise additional capital on terms and conditions which it finds acceptable. If the Corporation is not able to raise sufficient capital, it may not be able to grow the Corporation, or it may be forced to cease doing business.

If the Corporation does not hold good title to properties, its ability to explore and eventually mine them could be prevented or restricted.

The Corporation's business depends upon having clear title to its properties and its ability to explore, develop and mine its properties without undue restriction. If any of its properties are subject to prior unregistered agreements that restrict the use of the properties, or if it does not hold title to the properties as it believes it does, its ability to explore, develop and mine on those properties could be limited or prevented completely. This would have a material adverse effect on the Corporation and its results of operations.

Diamond prices can fluctuate significantly, and as a result, the Corporation's results of operation may fluctuate significantly.

The market for rough diamonds is subject to strong influence from demand in the United States, Japan, China and India, which are the largest markets for polished diamonds, and supply from major producers such as Alrosa of Russia and Debswana of Botswana. The price of diamonds has historically fluctuated. The price of diamonds dropped sharply after September 11, 2001. Between 2003 and 2006, diamond prices increased on average by approximately 15%. In 2007, rough diamond prices increased by an average of 25%, and in the first five months of 2008, by a further 11%. From about mid-2008 to mid-April 2009, rough diamond prices fell sharply with concerns of the global economic environment of the time. By mid-April 2009, rough diamond prices rebounded to pre-global recession levels. During 2010, rough diamond prices increased by approximately 30%. This strengthening continued through the first half of 2011 when diamond prices reached historic highs. During the second half of 2011, diamond prices dropped sharply resulting in an overall approximate 17% increase during the year. In 2012, rough diamond prices dropped by approximately 12 percent and remained largely unchanged through 2013. While the supply/demand fundamentals for diamonds would indicate good price support and steadily rising prices in the future, such fluctuations make it difficult to predict future diamond prices a high degree of certainty. To mitigate against this, the Corporation uses convertive modeled diamond prices in its economic studies and mine planning. Nonetheless, the Corporation's future results of operations may fluctuate significantly if rough diamond price volatility continues into the future.

- 18 -

The Corporation may incur significant costs to comply with Environmental and Government Regulation.

The current and anticipated future operations of the Corporation, including development activities and commencement of production on its properties, require permits from various federal, territorial and local governmental authorities and such operations are and will be governed by laws and regulations governing prospecting, development, mining, production, exports, taxes, labour standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, environmental protection, mine safety and other matters. Companies engaged in the development and operation of mines and related facilities generally experience increased costs, and delays in development, production and other schedules as a result of the need to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permits. The Corporation's exploration and development activities and its potential mining and processing operations in Canada are subject to various Canadian Federal and Territorial laws governing land use, the protection of the environment, prospecting, development, production, exports, taxes, labour standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, mine safety and other matters.

Such exploration, development and operation activities are also subject to substantial regulation under these laws by governmental agencies and may require that the Corporation obtain permits from various governmental agencies. The Corporation believes it is in substantial compliance with all material laws and regulations which currently apply to its activities. There can be no assurance, however, that all permits which the Corporation may require for construction of mining facilities and conduct of mining operations will be obtainable on reasonable terms or that such laws and regulations, or that new legislation or modifications to existing legislation, would not have an adverse effect on any exploration, development or mining activities which the Corporation might undertake.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permit requirements may result in enforcement actions thereunder, including orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed, and may include corrective measures requiring capital expenditures, installation of additional equipment or remedial actions. Parties engaged in mining operations may be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of the mining activities and may have civil or criminal fines or penalties imposed for violation of applicable laws or regulations. The amount of funds required to comply with all environmental regulations and to pay for compensation in the event of a breach of such laws may exceed the Corporation's ability to pay such amounts.

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing operations and activities of mining companies, or more stringent implementation of existing or new laws, could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation and cause increases in capital expenditures or production costs or reduction in levels of production at producing properties or require abandonment or delays in development of new mining facilities.

Climate and transportation costs may increase and have a negative effect on the Corporation's results of operation.

The Gahcho Kué Project is subject to climate and transportation risks because of its remote northern locations. Such factors can add to the costs of exploration, development and operation, thereby increasing costs and negatively affecting profitability. The availability of weather conducive to building and operating the Tibbitt to Contwoyto Winter Road is particularly critical to the development of the mine, and production.

The Corporation is dependent upon its joint venture partner for the success of the Gahcho Kué Project.

The Corporation, and the success of the Gahcho Kué Project, are dependent on the efforts, expertise and capital resources of the Corporation's joint venture partner, De Beers Canada, and its parent De Beers. De Beers Canada is the project operator and is responsible for exploring, permitting, developing and operating the Gahcho Kué Project. In addition, De Beers Canada is providing its share of financing for the Gahcho Kué Project. The Corporation is dependent on De Beers Canada for accurate information about the Gahcho Kué Project, and the proper and timely progress of exploration, permitting and development.

- 19 -

Operating Hazards and Risks

Diamond exploration and mining involves many risks. Operations in which the Corporation has a direct or indirect interest will be subject to all the hazards and risks (such as accidents, injuries, and hazardous waste) normally incidental to exploration, development and production of resources, any of which could result in work stoppages, damage to property and possible environmental damage.

There are numerous factors beyond the control of the Corporation that may affect the marketability of any diamonds discovered.

Factors beyond the control of the Corporation may affect the marketability of any diamonds produced. Significant price movements over short periods of time may be affected by numerous factors beyond the control of the Corporation, including international economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations (specifically, the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar and other currencies), interest rates and global and/or regional consumption patterns. The effect of these factors on the prices of diamonds and therefore the economic viability of any of the Corporation's projects cannot accurately be predicted.

The Corporation's expectations reflected in forward-looking statements may prove to be incorrect.

This Circular includes "forward-looking statements". A shareholder or prospective shareholder should bear this in mind when assessing the Corporation's business. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this annual report, including, without limitation, the statements under and located elsewhere herein regarding industry prospects and the Corporation's financial position are forward-looking statements. Although the Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, such expectations may prove to be incorrect.

The mineral resources industry is intensely competitive and the Corporation competes with many companies with greater financial means and technical facilities.

The resource industry is intensely competitive in all of its phases, and the Corporation competes with many companies possessing greater financial resources and technical facilities. Competition could adversely affect the Corporation's ability to acquire suitable producing properties or prospects for exploration in the future.

Aboriginal Rights and Title.

Governments in Canada must consult with aboriginal peoples with respect to grants of mineral rights and the issuance of or amendment to project authorizations. Consultation regarding rights or claimed rights of aboriginal people may require accommodations, including undertakings with respect to employment and other matters. This may affect the Corporation's timetable and costs of development of mineral properties. Aboriginal rights or title claims could affect the Corporation's existing operations, in addition to its future acquisitions. These legal requirements, among other things, may affect the Corporation's ability to develop the Gahcho Kué Project and other mineral properties or may materially delay the development of such properties.

Future equity financings which the Corporation may undertake would cause shareholders' interests in the Corporation to be diluted.

The Corporation's current operations do not generate any cash flow. As the Corporation seeks additional equity financing, the issuance of additional shares will dilute the interests of the Corporation's current shareholders. The amount of the dilution would depend on the number of new shares issued and the price at which they are issued. The Corporation has raised funds in recent years through share, option and warrant issuances. As of September 30, 2014, the Corporation had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately \$36.7 million and working capital of approximately \$1,989,043. To develop the Gahcho Kué mine, and perform exploration on any other properties acquired, the Corporation will need to investigate sources of additional liquidity to increase the cash balances required in the future. These additional sources include, but are not limited to, share offerings, private placements, rights offerings, credit and debt facilities, as well as the exercise of outstanding options. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to raise additional funds as needed, or that funds raised, if any, would be on terms and conditions acceptable to the Corporation. The Corporation's annual cash administrative operating costs, excluding the costs directly associated with the Gahcho Kué Project, are approximately \$2.5 million.

- 20 -

If outstanding options to buy Corporation stock are exercised, existing shareholders' interests in the Corporation will be diluted.

As at February 18, 2015 there were 1,400,000 options outstanding with exercise prices ranging from \$4.06 to \$6.13 (expiring at various dates). The stock options, if fully exercised, would increase the number of shares outstanding by 1,400,000. Such options, if fully exercised, would constitute about 1.02% (out of 136,604,550 shares (135,204,550 issued and outstanding, plus total outstanding options)) of the Corporation's resulting share capital as at February 18, 2015. It is unlikely that outstanding options and warrants would be exercised unless the market price of the Common Shares exceeds the exercise price at the date of exercise. The exercise of such options and the subsequent resale of such Common shares in the public market could adversely affect the prevailing market price and the Corporation's ability to raise equity capital in the future at a time and price which it deems appropriate. The Corporation may also enter into commitments in the future which would require the issuance of additional Common Shares and the Corporation's treasury will result in dilution to existing shareholders.

Members of the Corporation's Board of Directors may have outside interests which conflict with the Corporation or its shareholders.

The President and CEO and director, Patrick Evans, and the Vice President, Finance, CFO and Corporate Secretary, Bruce Ramsden, have consulting agreements with the Corporation. In addition, certain officers and directors of the Corporation are associated with other natural resource companies that acquire interests in mineral properties. Such associations may give rise to conflicts of interest from time to time.

If the Corporation is not able to attract and maintain qualified key management personnel, it may not be able to successfully implement its planned business activities and growth.

The nature of the Corporation's business, its ability to continue its exploration, development and permitting activities and to thereby develop a competitive edge in its marketplace depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and maintain qualified key management personnel. Competition for such personnel is intense, and there can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to attract and retain such personnel. The Corporation's development to date has depended, and in the future will continue to depend, on the efforts of Patrick Evans. Loss of the key person could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation. The Corporation does not maintain key-man life insurance on Patrick Evans.

The Corporation's stock price is subject to significant fluctuations.

Prices for the Corporation's shares on the TSX and on the NYSE MKT (prior to being listed on the NASDAQ), have been extremely volatile. Any investment in the Corporation's securities is therefore subject to considerable fluctuations in value.

The Corporation has not paid dividends in the past and does not anticipate paying them in the foreseeable future.

Since its inception, the Corporation has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its common stock until significant cash flow is generated. Without dividends on its common stock, shareholders will be able to profit from an investment only if the price of the stock appreciates before the shareholder sells it.

- 21 -

Currency rate fluctuations may have a material effect on the Corporation's financial position, results of operations, and timing of the development of the Corporation's properties.

Feasibility and other studies conducted to evaluate the Corporation's properties are typically denominated in U.S. dollars, and the Corporation conducts a significant portion of its operations and incurs a significant portion of its administrative and operating costs in Canadian dollars. The exchange rate for converting U.S. dollars into Canadian dollars has fluctuated in recent years. Accordingly, the Corporation is subject to fluctuations in the rates of currency exchange between the U.S. dollar and the Canadian dollar, and these fluctuations in the rates of currency exchange may materially affect the Corporation's financial position, results of operations and timing of the development of its properties. In particular, a strong Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar would negatively impact the Gahcho Kué Project.

Historically, the Corporation has been dependent on the support of De Beers and there is no assurance that their support will continue in the future.

The exploration of the Gahcho Kué Project has historically been funded by De Beers Canada. De Beers Canada is the operator of the Project, and has an equity investment in the Corporation. With the execution of the JV Agreement, De Beers and the Corporation share funding responsibility for the Gahcho Kué Project. Under the JV Agreement, the Corporation and De Beers are required to fund their share of costs for future operations. As well, the Corporation is required to make certain repayments of agreed historic costs of the Gahcho Kué Project, funded by De Beers, if and when certain events occur. If either party is unable to fund their share of costs, or, if the Corporation defaults on its required payments of historic costs if and when they are due, in addition to interest on late or defaulted payments, marketing rights can be diluted for the defaulting party. As well, there is no assurance that the Corporation will have the required funds on hand when the payments are required to be made. Finally, there is no assurance that the level of support provided by De Beers will continue in the future.

It will be difficult for any shareholder of the Corporation to commence legal action against the Corporation's executives.

As the Corporation is a Canadian Corporation, it may be difficult for U.S. shareholders of the Corporation to effect service of process on the Corporation or to realize on judgments obtained against the Corporation in the United States. Some of the Corporation's directors and officers are residents of Canada and a significant part of the Corporation's assets are, or will be, located outside of the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for shareholders resident in the United States to effect service of process within the United States upon the Corporation or directors, officers or experts who are not residents of the United States, or to realize in the United States judgments of courts of the United States predicated upon civil liability of any of the Corporation's directors or officers under the United States federal securities laws. If a judgment is obtained in the U.S. courts based on civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal

securities laws against the Corporation or its directors or officers, it will be difficult to enforce the judgment in the Canadian courts against the Corporation and any of the Corporation's non-U.S. resident executive officers or directors. Accordingly, United States shareholders may be forced to bring actions against the Corporation and its directors and officers under Canadian law and in Canadian courts in order to enforce any claims that they may have against the Corporation or the Corporation's directors and officers. Subject to necessary registration, as an extra-provincial company, under applicable provincial corporate statutes in the case of a corporate shareholder, Canadian courts do not restrict the ability of non-resident persons to sue in their courts. Nevertheless it may be difficult for United States shareholders to bring an original action in the Canadian courts to enforce liabilities based on the U.S. federal securities laws against the Corporation and any of the Corporation's Canadian executive officers or directors.

The Common Shares may be delisted from NASDAQ, and if this occurs, Shareholders may have difficulty converting their investment into cash efficiently.

NASDAQ has established certain standards for the continued listing of a security on this exchange. If the Common Shares were to be excluded from NASDAQ, the prices of the Common Shares and the ability of shareholders to sell such stock would be adversely affected. If the Corporation were to be delisted, the Corporation would be required to comply with the initial listing requirements to be relisted on NASDAQ.

- 22 -

The Corporation is likely a "passive foreign investment company" which may have adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences for U.S. shareholders.

U.S. investors in the Common Shares should be aware that the Corporation believes it was classified as a passive foreign investment company ("PFIC") during the tax year ended December 31, 2014, and based on current business plans and financial expectations, the Corporation believes that it will be a PFIC for the tax year ending December 31, 2015, and may be a PFIC in future tax years. If the Corporation is a PFIC for any year during a U.S. shareholder's holding period, then such U.S. shareholder generally will be required to treat any gain realized upon a disposition of Common Shares, or any so-called "excess distribution" received on its Common Shares, as ordinary income, and to pay an interest charge on a portion of such gain or distributions, unless the shareholder makes a timely and effective "qualified electing fund" election ("QEF Election") or a "mark-to-market" election with respect to the Common Shares. A U.S. shareholder who makes a OEF Election generally must report on a current basis its share of the Corporation's net capital gain and ordinary earnings for any year in which the Corporation is a PFIC, whether or not the Corporation distributes any amounts to its shareholders. However, U.S. shareholders should be aware that there can be no assurance that the Corporation will satisfy record keeping requirements that apply to a qualified electing fund, or that the Corporation will supply U.S. shareholders with information that such U.S. shareholders require to report under the OEF Election rules, in the event that the Corporation is a PFIC and a U.S. shareholder wishes to make a QEF Election. Thus, U.S. shareholders may not be able to make a QEF Election with respect to their Common Shares. A U.S. shareholder who makes the mark-to-market election generally must include as ordinary income each year the excess of the fair market value of the Common Shares over the shareholder's tax basis therein. Each U.S. shareholder should review the more detailed discussion under "Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations" below and consult its own tax advisor regarding the PFIC rules and the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Common Shares.

Risk Factors Relating to this Rights Offering

Further Financing is Required.

The Offering, if successful, fulfills one condition to the advance of the Facility. Finalization of the Facility is subject customary conditions, including final documentation and syndication, and establishment of the Overrun Facility. The Corporation is dependent upon the Facility to finance its portion of the Project. While the Corporation will have established what it believes to be an appropriate Overrun Facility, it may require additional funding from time to time. In the event that the Corporation is unable to complete the Facility, drawdown of the Facility, suffers withdrawal of the Facility, or should it be unable to raise additional funds through additional debt or financings, as it may require from time to time, on terms acceptable to the Corporation, or at all, the Corporation may be unable to meet its obligations under the JV Agreement, which could result in a failure of the Project or in a loss or dilution of the Corporation's interest in the Project, which could have a materially adverse effect on the Corporation and the Corporation's security holders.

Subscription Price not an Indication of Value.

The Subscription Price of \$4.00 represents approximately a 13.42% discount to the closing price of the Common Shares on February 17, 2015, the last trading day prior to the Corporation announcing its intention to undertake a Rights Offering. The Subscription Price was determined by the board of directors of the Corporation and does not necessarily bear any relationship to the book value of MPV's assets, past operations, cash flows, losses, financial condition or any other established criteria for value. Shareholders should not consider the Subscription Price as an indication of the Corporation's value. After the date of this Rights Offering Circular, the Common Shares may trade at prices above or below the Subscription Price.

Decline in the Trading Price May Occur.

The trading price of the Common Shares in the future may decline below the Subscription Price. MPV can make no assurance that the Subscription Price will remain below any future trading price for the Common Shares. Future prices of the Common Shares may adjust positively or negatively depending on various factors including MPV's future revenues, operations, speculation in the trade or business press about MPV's operations and overall conditions affecting MPV's businesses, economic trends and the securities markets.

- 23 -

No Revocation of Right.

Even if the price of the Common Shares declines below the Subscription Price for the Common Shares, resulting in a loss on subscribers' investments upon the exercise of the subscribers' Rights, subscribers may not revoke or change the exercise of Rights after they send in their subscription forms and payment. MPV may, in its discretion, extend the Rights Expiry Time in accordance with applicable Canadian securities laws and the applicable policies of the TSX. During any potential extension of time, the price of the Common Shares may decline below the Subscription Price and result in a loss on subscribers' investments upon the exercise of the Rights. If the Rights Expiry Time is extended after subscribers send in their subscription forms and payment, subscribers still may not revoke or change the exercise of Rights.

No Interest on Subscription Funds.

If MPV cancels the Rights Offering, neither MPV nor the Subscription Agent will have any obligation with respect to the Rights, except to return, without interest, any subscription payments to subscribers.

Shareholders Need to Act Promptly and Follow Subscription Instructions.

Shareholders who desire to purchase Rights Shares in this Rights Offering must act promptly to ensure that all required forms and payments are actually received by the Subscription Agent prior to the Rights Expiry Time, and any permitted extension of the Rights Expiry Time. If Shareholders fail to complete and sign the required subscription forms, send an incorrect payment amount, or otherwise fail to follow the subscription procedures that apply to the exercise of Rights by the holder, the Subscription Agent may, depending on the circumstances, reject the subscription or accept it to the extent of the payment received. Neither MPV nor the Subscription Agent undertakes to attempt to correct an incomplete or incorrect subscription form or payment. MPV has the sole discretion to determine whether an exercise of Rights properly follows the subscription procedures.

STATEMENT AS TO RESALE RESTRICTIONS

Securities legislation in the Qualifying Jurisdictions restricts the ability of a holder to trade the Rights and the Rights Shares issuable upon the exercise of such Rights, without certain conditions having been fulfilled or applicable prospectus and registration requirements of applicable securities legislation having been complied with in the Qualifying Jurisdictions. The following is a general summary of the restrictions governing the first trades of such securities in the Qualifying Jurisdictions. Additional restrictions apply to "insiders" of the Corporation and holders of

the Rights and the Rights Shares issuable upon the exercise of the Rights, who are "control persons" or the equivalent or who are deemed to be part of what is commonly referred to as a "control block" in respect of the Corporation for purposes of securities legislation. Each holder of Rights is urged to consult his or her professional advisors to determine the exact conditions and restrictions applicable to trades of the securities.

Generally, in Canada, the first trade of any of the Common Shares will be exempt from the prospectus requirements of securities legislation in the Qualifying Jurisdictions if:

(a) the Corporation is and has been a "reporting issuer" in a jurisdiction of Canada for the four months immediately preceding the trade;

- (b) the trade is not a "control distribution" as defined in the applicable securities legislation;
- (c) no unusual effort is made to prepare the market or to create a demand for the securities;
- (d) no extraordinary commission or other consideration is paid in respect of such trade; and

(e) if the seller is an insider or officer of the Corporation, the seller has no reasonable grounds to believe that the Corporation is in default of applicable securities legislation.

- 24 -

If such conditions have not been met, then the securities may not be resold except pursuant to a prospectus or prospectus exemption, which may only be available in limited circumstances.

The Corporation has been a reporting issuer for more than four months in each of the provinces of British Columbia, Alberta, Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Ontario, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island and Newfoundland and Labrador.

In addition, the Rights may not be transferred to any person within the United States. The Rights may be transferred only through the facilities of the TSX in transactions that comply with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, which will permit the resale of the Rights by Rights holders through the facilities of the TSX, provided that the offer is not made to a person in the United States, neither the seller nor any person acting on its behalf knows that the transaction has been prearranged with a buyer in the United States, and no "directed selling efforts", as that term is defined in Regulation S, are conducted in the United States in connection with the resale. Certain additional conditions are applicable to the Corporation's "affiliates", as that term is defined under the U.S. Securities Act. In order to enforce this resale restriction, a Rights holder thereof will be required to execute a declaration certifying that such sale is being made through the facilities of the TSX in accordance with Regulation S.

The foregoing is a summary only and is not intended to be exhaustive. Holders of Rights should consult with their advisors concerning restrictions on resale, and should not resell their securities until they have determined that any such resale is in compliance with the requirements of applicable legislation.

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

In the opinion of Bennett Jones LLP, counsel to the Corporation, the following is a summary, as of the date hereof, of the principal Canadian federal income tax consequences under the Tax Act generally applicable to holders who acquire Rights pursuant to the Rights Offering and Rights Shares issued on the exercise of such Rights and who, at all relevant times, for purposes of the Tax Act (i) hold their existing Common Shares, and will hold their Rights and Rights Shares as capital property; and (ii) deal at arm's length with and are not affiliated with the Corporation (herein, "**Holders**"). Rights and Rights Shares will generally be considered to be held as capital property unless held in the course of carrying on a business or acquired in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade.

This summary is not applicable to a Holder of Rights or Rights Shares: (i) that is a "financial institution" or "specified financial institution" for purposes of the Tax Act, (ii) an interest in which is a "tax shelter investment" for the purposes of the Tax Act, or (iii) that has made a functional currency reporting election pursuant to section 261 of the Tax Act. This summary also does not apply to a Resident Holder that has entered or will enter into a "derivative forward

agreement" as that term is defined in the Tax Act. Such Holders should consult their own tax advisors. In addition, this summary does not address the deductibility of interest by a Holder that has borrowed money or otherwise incurred debt in connection with the exercise of the Rights offered pursuant to this Rights Offering.

This summary is based on the current provisions of the Tax Act in force on the date hereof, all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date of this Rights Offering Circular (the "**Proposed Amendments**") and on counsel's understanding of the current administrative practices and assessing policies of the Canada Revenue Agency ("**CRA**") publicly available prior to the date hereof. This summary assumes that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the form proposed. However, no assurances can be given that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted as proposed or at all. This summary is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax considerations and, except for the Proposed Amendments, does not take into account or anticipate any changes in the law or in the administrative practices or assessing policies of CRA, whether by legislative, governmental, administrative or judicial decision or action, nor does it take into account or consider any provincial, territorial or foreign income tax considerations, which may differ significantly from those discussed herein.

This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice to any Holder or prospective holder and no representations with respect to the income tax consequences to any particular Holder or a prospective holder are made. Accordingly, all Holders should consult their own income tax advisors with respect to the specific tax consequences to them of acquiring, holding, exercising and disposing of Rights or Rights Shares.

- 25 -

Residents of Canada

The following discussion applies to a Holder who, at all relevant times, is or is deemed to be a resident of Canada for the purposes of the Tax Act and any applicable tax treaty or convention (a "**Canadian Holder**"). Certain Canadian Holders may, in certain circumstances, be able to make an irrevocable election under subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act to treat the Rights Shares and every "Canadian security" (as defined in the Tax Act) owned by such Canadian Holder in the taxation year of the election and in all subsequent taxation years as capital property. Rights are not "Canadian securities" for this purpose; accordingly, the characterization of Rights as capital property is unaffected by a Canadian Holder's election under subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act.

Receipt of Rights

No amount will be required to be included in computing the income of a Canadian Holder as a consequence of acquiring Rights pursuant to the Rights Offering. The cost of a Right received pursuant to the Rights Offering will be nil for the purposes of the Tax Act. The adjusted cost base of each identical Right held by a Canadian Holder will be averaged with the adjusted cost base of each other Right held by that Canadian Holder as capital property (including any Rights acquired otherwise than pursuant to this Rights Offering).

Exercise of Rights

The exercise of Rights will not constitute a disposition of property for purposes of the Tax Act and, consequently, no gain or loss will be realized on the exercise of Rights. The cost of a Rights Share acquired on the exercise of Rights will be equal to the aggregate of the amount paid to acquire such Rights Share and the adjusted cost base, if any, of the Right. The adjusted cost base of such Rights Shares will be averaged with the adjusted cost base of all Common Shares held by the Canadian Holder as capital property immediately before the acquisition thereof.

Expiry of Rights

The expiry of an unexercised Right will result in a capital loss to the Canadian Holder equal to the adjusted cost base, if any, of the Right immediately before its expiry. The tax treatment of capital losses (if any) is described below under the subheading "*Capital Gains and Capital Losses*".

Disposition of Rights or Rights Shares

Upon a disposition or deemed disposition of a Right or a Rights Share by a Canadian Holder (in the case of Rights, other than pursuant to the exercise or expiry thereof), the Canadian Holder will generally realize a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition, net of any reasonable costs of the disposition, exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of such Right or Rights Share (if any), as the case may be, to the Canadian Holder. The tax treatment of capital gains and losses is discussed in greater detail below under the subheading "*Capital Gains and Capital Losses*".

Receipt of Dividends on Rights Shares

A Canadian Holder will be required to include in computing its income for a taxation year any taxable dividends received or deemed to be received on such Canadian Holder's Rights Shares. In the case of a Canadian Holder who is an individual (other than certain trusts), such taxable dividends will be subject to the gross up and dividend tax credit rules normally applicable to taxable dividends received from "taxable Canadian corporations" (as defined in the Tax Act), including the enhanced gross up and dividend tax credit rules for "eligible dividends" (as defined in the Tax Act). Eligible dividends will generally include dividends paid by a taxable Canadian corporation, such as the Corporation, where those dividends have been designated as "eligible dividends" by the corporation at or prior to the time the dividends are paid. There are limitations on the ability of a corporation to designate dividends as eligible dividends.

- 26 -

Taxable dividends received by a Canadian Holder who is an individual (including certain trusts) may give rise to a liability for alternative minimum tax as calculated under the detailed rules set out in the Tax Act.

A Canadian Holder that is a corporation will be required to include dividends received or deemed to be received on the Rights Shares in computing its income for tax purposes and generally will be entitled to deduct the amount of such dividends in computing its taxable income, subject to all applicable restrictions under the Tax Act. A corporation that is a private corporation or a subject corporation for purposes of the Tax Act may also be liable to pay a tax (refundable in certain circumstances) of 33 1/3% on dividends received or deemed to be received to the extent that such dividends are deductible in computing the corporation's taxable income.

Capital Gains and Capital Losses

One-half of any capital gain realized by a Canadian Holder must be included in the Canadian Holder's income for the year as a taxable capital gain and one-half of any capital loss realized by a Canadian Holder must deducted as an allowable capital loss against taxable capital gains realized by the Canadian Holder in the year of disposition. Allowable capital losses for a taxation year in excess of taxable capital gains for that year generally may be carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any subsequent taxation year against net taxable capital gains realized in such years, to the extent and under the circumstances described in the Tax Act. A capital gain realized by a Canadian Holder that is an individual (including certain trusts) may give rise to a liability for alternative minimum tax as calculated under the detailed rules set out in the Tax Act.

The amount of any capital loss realized by a Canadian Holder that is a corporation on the disposition or deemed disposition of Rights Shares may be reduced by the amount of dividends received or deemed to have been received by it on such shares or shares substituted for such shares to the extent and in the circumstances described by the Tax Act. Similar rules may apply where a corporation is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a trust that owns Rights Shares, directly or indirectly, through a partnership or a trust. Canadian Holders to which these rules may be relevant should consult with their own tax advisors in this regard.

A Canadian Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a "Canadian-controlled private corporation" (as defined in the Tax Act) also may be liable to pay an additional tax (refundable in certain circumstances) of 6 %% on certain investment income which will include an amount in respect of taxable capital gains.

Non-Residents of Canada

The following portion of the summary is generally applicable to a Registered Holder that, at all relevant times for purposes of the Tax Act, is neither resident nor deemed to be resident in Canada (including as a consequence of an applicable income tax treaty or convention) and does not use or hold, and is not deemed to use or hold Rights or Rights Shares in connection with carrying on a business in Canada (a "**Non-Resident Holder**"). Special rules, which are not discussed in this summary, may apply to a non-resident insurer carrying on business in Canada and elsewhere.

Receipt of Rights

The issuance of Rights to a Non-Resident Holder pursuant to the Rights Offering will not be subject to Canadian withholding tax and no other tax will be payable under the Tax Act by a Non-Resident Holder in respect of the receipt of Rights pursuant to the Rights Offering.

Exercise of Rights

The exercise of Rights by a Non-Resident Holder will not constitute a disposition of Rights for purposes of the Tax Act and, consequently, no gain or loss will be realized by the Non-Resident Holder upon the exercise of the Rights.

- 27 -

Expiry of Rights

A Non-Resident Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of the expiry or termination of an unexercised Right.

Dispositions of the Rights or Rights Shares

A Non-Resident Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of any capital gain realized on a disposition of Rights or Rights Shares (including a disposition made on behalf of non-registered, beneficial holders) unless the Rights or Rights Shares disposed of constitute "taxable Canadian property" of the Non-Resident Holder and the Non-Resident Holder is not entitled to relief under an applicable income tax treaty or convention.

The Rights will only be "taxable Canadian property" of a Non-Resident Holder if the Rights Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the Rights would be "taxable Canadian property" of the Non-Resident Holder.

Generally, a Rights Share will not be "taxable Canadian property" of a Non-Resident Holder at a particular time provided that either: (a) at no time during the 60-month period preceding the particular time did such Rights Share derive more than 50% of its fair market value directly or indirectly from one or any combination of: (i) real or immovable properties situated in Canada, (ii) Canadian resource properties, (iii) timber resource properties (as such terms are defined in the Tax Act), and (iv) options in respect of, or interests in, or for civil law rights in, property described in (i) to (iii), whether or not the property exists; or (b) such Rights Share is listed on a designated stock exchange (which currently includes the TSX) at that time and at no time during the 60-month period ending at that time did the Non-Resident Holder, persons not dealing at arm's length with such Non-Resident Holder or the Non-Resident Holder together with all such persons, own 25% or more of the issued shares of any class or series of the capital stock of the Corporation.

Non-Resident Holders for which the Rights or Rights Shares may constitute "taxable Canadian property" should consult their own tax advisors for advice having regard to their particular circumstances.

Receipt of Dividends on Rights Shares

Dividends on Rights Shares paid or credited, or deemed to be paid or credited to a Non-Resident Holder will be subject to a non-resident withholding tax under the Tax Act at a rate of 25%, subject to reduction under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty or convention.

CERTAIN U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a general summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to a U.S. Holder (as defined below) arising from and relating to the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights (which for purposes of this discussion, will include any Rights acquired pursuant to the Additional Subscription Privilege) under the Rights Offering and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares received upon the exercise of such Rights. For purposes of this summary, the references to "Rights Shares" shall mean Common Shares received upon the exercise of the Rights.

This summary is for general information purposes only and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential U.S. federal income tax considerations that may apply to a U.S. Holder arising from and relating to the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares. In addition, this summary does not take into account the individual facts and circumstances of any particular U.S. Holder that may affect the U.S. federal income tax consequences to such U.S. Holder, including specific tax consequences to a U.S. Holder under an applicable tax treaty. Accordingly, this summary is not intended to be, and should not be construed as, legal or U.S. federal income tax advice with respect to any U.S. Holder. This summary does not address the U.S. federal alternative minimum, U.S. federal estate and gift, U.S. state and local, and foreign tax consequences to U.S. Holders of the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares. In addition, except as specifically set forth below, this summary does not discuss applicable income tax reporting requirements. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the U.S. and non-U.S. tax consequences relating to the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Rights and the ownership and Rights Shares.

- 28 -

No legal opinion from U.S. legal counsel or ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") has been requested, or will be obtained, regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares. This summary is not binding on the IRS, and the IRS is not precluded from taking a position that is different from, and contrary to, the positions taken in this summary. In addition, because the authorities on which this summary is based are subject to various interpretations, the IRS and the U.S. courts could disagree with one or more of the positions taken in this summary.

NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS SUMMARY CONCERNING ANY U.S. FEDERAL TAX ISSUE IS INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND IT CANNOT BE USED, BY A U.S. HOLDER, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING U.S. FEDERAL TAX PENALTIES UNDER THE CODE (AS DEFINED BELOW). THIS SUMMARY WAS WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS ADDRESSED BY THIS DOCUMENT. EACH U.S. HOLDER SHOULD SEEK U.S. FEDERAL TAX ADVICE, BASED ON SUCH U.S. HOLDER'S PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES, FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR.

Scope of this Summary

Authorities

This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "**Code**"), Treasury Regulations (whether final, temporary, or proposed), published rulings and administrative positions of the IRS, the Convention Between Canada and the United States of America with Respect to Taxes on Income and on Capital, signed September 26, 1980, as amended (the "**Canada-U.S. Tax Convention**"), and U.S. court decisions that are applicable and, in each case, as in effect and available, as of the date of this document. Any of the authorities on which this summary is based could be changed in a material and adverse manner at any time, and any such change could be applied on a retroactive or prospective basis which could affect the U.S. federal income tax considerations described in this summary. This summary does not discuss the potential effects, whether adverse or beneficial, of any proposed legislation that, if enacted, could be applied on a retroactive or prospective basis.

U.S. Holders

For purposes of this summary, the term "**U.S. Holder**" means a beneficial owner of Rights or Rights Shares acquired upon the exercise of Rights received pursuant to this Offering that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

an individual who is a citizen or resident of the U.S.;

a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) organized under the laws of the U.S., any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

a trust that (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the U.S. and the control of one or more U.S. \cdot persons for all substantial decisions or (2) has a valid election in effect under applicable Treasury Regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

- 29 -

•

.

U.S. Holders Subject to Special U.S. Federal Income Tax Rules Not Addressed

This summary does not address the U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to U.S. Holders that are subject to special provisions under the Code, including, but not limited to, U.S. Holders: (a) that are tax-exempt organizations, qualified retirement plans, individual retirement accounts, or other tax-deferred accounts; (b) that are financial institutions, underwriters, insurance companies, real estate investment trusts, or regulated investment companies; (c) that are broker-dealers, dealers, or traders in securities or currencies that elect to apply a mark-to-market accounting method; (d) that have a "functional currency" other than the U.S. dollar; (e) that own Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares as part of a straddle, hedging transaction, conversion transaction, constructive sale, or other arrangement involving more than one position; (f) that acquired Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares in connection with the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as compensation for services; (g) that hold Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares other than as a capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment purposes); or (h) that own or have owned (directly, indirectly, or by attribution) 10% or more of the total combined voting power of the outstanding shares of the Corporation. This summary also does not address the U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to U.S. Holders who are: (a) U.S. expatriates or former long-term residents of the U.S.; (b) persons that have been, are, or will be a resident or deemed to be a resident in Canada for purposes of the Tax Act; (c) persons that use or hold, will use or hold, or that are or will be deemed to use or hold Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares in connection with carrying on a business in Canada; (d) persons whose Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares constitute "taxable Canadian property" under the Tax Act; or (e) persons that have a permanent establishment in Canada for the purposes of the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention. U.S. Holders that are subject to special provisions under the Code, including, but not limited to, U.S. Holders described immediately above, should consult their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. and non-U.S. tax consequences relating to the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares.

If an entity or arrangement that is classified as a partnership (or "pass-through" entity) for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds Rights, Common Shares or Rights Shares, the U.S. federal income tax consequences to such entity and the owners of such entity generally will depend on the activities of the entity and the status of such owners. This summary does not discuss U.S. tax consequences to such entities or owners. Owners of entities or arrangements that are classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes should consult their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences arising from and relating to the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares.

Taxation of Rights

The following discussion is subject to the rules described below under the heading "Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules".

Receipt of Rights

Generally, a U.S. Holder that receives a right to acquire shares will not be treated as receiving a taxable dividend. However, under certain circumstances, a U.S. Holder that receives a right to acquire shares may be treated as receiving a taxable dividend in an amount equal to the value of such right. For example, a U.S. Holder that receives a right to acquire common shares generally will be treated as having received a taxable dividend if such U.S. Holder's proportionate interest in the earnings and profits or assets of the corporation is increased and any other shareholder receives a distribution of cash or other property. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the term "shareholder" includes holders of warrants, options and convertible securities. During the last 36 months, the Corporation has not made any distributions of cash or non-stock property with respect to: (i) shares of the Corporation; or (ii) options or warrants to acquire shares of the Corporation. The distribution of the Rights hereunder is an isolated transaction and is not part of a plan to increase any shareholder's proportionate interest in our earnings and profits. The Corporation does not have any convertible debt outstanding. Nor does the Corporation currently intend to issue any convertible debt or pay any dividends on Common Shares (other than the issuance of the Rights in connection with the Rights Offering).

While the issue is not free from doubt, the Corporation believes that the distribution of the Rights should be treated as a non-taxable stock distribution under Section 305(a) of the Code and the Corporation and its agents (including the depositary) intend to treat the distribution of the Rights consistently with this belief. The following discussion is based upon the treatment of the Right issuance as a non-recognition event for federal income tax purposes under Section 305(a) of the Code. The following discussion assumes that the IRS and U.S. courts will respect the Corporation's position and that the U.S. Holder is not subject to United States federal income tax on the receipt (or deemed receipt) of a Right. However, the Corporation's position is not binding on the IRS and no assurance can be made that the IRS will not disagree with such position. If the Corporation's position were finally determined by the IRS or a U.S. court to be incorrect, the fair market value of the Rights a U.S. Holder receives would be taxable to that U.S. Holder as a dividend in the manner described below under "*Taxation of Common Shares — Taxation of Distributions*". Although no assurance can be given, it is anticipated that the Corporation will not have current and accumulated earnings and profits through the end of 2015. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the risk of having a taxable distribution as a result of the receipt of the Rights.

- 30 -

If the fair market value of the Rights on the date of their distribution equals or exceeds 15% of the fair market value on such date the Common Shares with respect to which the Rights are distributed, a U.S. Holder's tax basis in such Common Shares must be allocated between such Common Shares and the Rights. Such an allocation must be made in proportion to the fair market value of the Common Shares and the fair market value of the Rights on the date the Rights are distributed.

If the fair market value of the Rights on the date the Corporation distributes them is less than 15% of the fair market value of the Common Shares on the same date, a U.S. Holder's tax basis in such Rights will be zero and the U.S. Holder's basis in the Common Shares with respect to which the Rights are distributed will remain unchanged. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a U.S. Holder may elect (in a statement attached to the U.S. Holder's United States federal income tax return for the year in which the Rights were received) to allocate to the Rights a portion of the U.S. Holder's basis in such Common Shares in the manner described in the immediately preceding paragraph. Any such election is irrevocable and must be applied to all of the Rights an investor receives pursuant to the Offering.

Sale or Other Disposition of Rights

Upon a sale or other disposition of a Right, a U.S. Holder will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized and the U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the Right. The amount realized on a sale or other disposition of a Right for cash generally will be the amount of cash a U.S. Holder receives in exchange for such Right. If the consideration a U.S. Holder receives for the Right is not paid in U.S. dollars, the amount realized will be the U.S. dollar value of the payment the U.S. Holder receives determined by reference to the spot exchange rate in effect on the date of the sale or other disposition or, if the Right sold or exchanged is traded on an "established securities market" and the U.S. Holder is a cash basis taxpayer or an electing accrual basis taxpayer, the spot exchange rate in effect on the settlement date.

Subject to the passive foreign investment company (as defined below, a "**PFIC**") rules discussed below, any gain or loss a U.S. Holder recognizes on the sale or other disposition of a Right to a third party will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder's holding period in the Right is deemed to be greater than one year. A U.S. Holder's holding period in a Right will be deemed to have begun on the same date as that of the Common Share with respect to which the U.S. Holder received such Right. Any gain or loss will generally be treated as U.S. source gain or loss. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Termination of Rights

If a U.S. Holder allows a Right to expire without such Right being exercised, sold or exchanged by the U.S. Holder or on the U.S. Holder's behalf, no portion of the tax basis in the Common Shares owned by such holder with respect to

which such Rights were distributed will be allocated to the unexercised Rights. If a U.S. Holder allocates a portion of its tax basis in the Common Shares held by such holder to the Rights and the Rights expire without exercise after the holder disposes of the Common Shares with respect to which the Rights were received, then the tax consequences are unclear. Either the U.S. Holder recomputes its gain or loss from the sale of the Common Shares as if no basis were allocated to the Rights or the U.S. Holder should recognize a capital loss from the expiration of the Rights equal to the tax basis allocated to such Rights. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding this issue.

Exercise of Rights

The exercise of a Right by a U.S. Holder will not be a taxable transaction for United States federal income tax purposes. A U.S. Holder's initial basis in Rights Shares acquired upon exercise of a Right generally will be equal to the Subscription Price plus the U.S. Holder's basis (if any) in the Right in U.S. dollars. Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, the holding period for Rights Shares acquired on the exercise of a Right will begin on the date of exercise.

- 31 -

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

If the Corporation is considered a "passive foreign investment company" under the meaning of Section 1297 of the Code (a "**PFIC**") at any time during a U.S. Holder's holding period, the following sections will generally describe the U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. Holders of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares. The Corporation believes that it was classified as a PFIC for its tax year ended December 31, 2014, and based on current business plans and financial expectations, the Corporation expects to be a PFIC for its current tax year ending December 31, 2015 and may be a PFIC in future tax years. The determination of whether any corporation was, or will be, a PFIC for a tax year depends, in part, on the application of complex U.S. federal income tax rules, which are subject to differing interpretations. In addition, whether any corporation will be a PFIC for any tax year depends on the assets and income of such corporation over the course of each such tax year and, as a result, cannot be predicted with certainty as of the date of this document. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not challenge any determination made by the Corporation concerning its PFIC status or that the Corporation was not, or will not be, a PFIC for any tax year. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the PFIC status of the Corporation.

In any year in which the Corporation is classified as a PFIC, a U.S. Holder will be required to file an annual report with the IRS containing such information as Treasury Regulations and/or other IRS guidance may require. In addition to penalties, a failure to satisfy such reporting requirements may result in an extension of the time period during which the IRS can assess a tax. U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the requirements of filing such information returns under these rules, including the requirement to file an IRS Form 8621.

The Corporation generally will be a PFIC if, for a tax year, (a) 75% or more of the gross income of the Corporation is passive income (the "**income test**") or (b) 50% or more of the value of the Corporation's assets either produce passive income or are held for the production of passive income, based on the quarterly average of the fair market value of such assets (the "**asset test**"). "Gross income" generally includes all sales revenues less the cost of goods sold, plus income from investments and from incidental or outside operations or sources, and "passive income" generally includes, for example, dividends, interest, certain rents and royalties, certain gains from the sale of stock and securities, and certain gains from commodities transactions. Active business gains arising from the sale of commodities are stock in trade or inventory, depreciable property used in a trade or business, or supplies regularly used or consumed in the ordinary course of its trade or business, and certain other requirements are satisfied.

For purposes of the PFIC income test and asset test described above, if the Corporation owns, directly or indirectly, 25% or more of the total value of the outstanding shares of another corporation, the Corporation will be treated as if it (a) held a proportionate share of the assets of such other corporation and (b) received directly a proportionate share of the income of such other corporation. In addition, for purposes of the PFIC income test and asset test described above, "passive income" does not include any interest, dividends, rents, or royalties that are received or accrued by the Corporation from a "related person" (as defined in Section 954(d)(3) of the Code), to the extent such items are properly allocable to the income of such related person that is not passive income.

In addition, under certain attribution rules, if the Corporation is a PFIC, U.S. Holders will be deemed to own their proportionate share of any subsidiary of the Corporation which is also a PFIC (a "**Subsidiary PFIC**"), and will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on their proportionate share of any (a) distribution on the shares of a Subsidiary PFIC and (b) disposition or deemed disposition of shares of a Subsidiary PFIC, both as if such U.S. Holders directly held the shares of such Subsidiary PFIC.

- 32 -

Default PFIC Rules Under Section 1291 of the Code

If the Corporation is a PFIC, the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a U.S. Holder of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Common Shares, Rights and Rights Shares will depend on whether such U.S. Holder makes a timely election to treat the Corporation (and/or a Subsidiary PFIC) as a "qualified electing fund" or "QEF" under Section 1295 of the Code (a "**QEF Election**") or makes a timely mark-to-market election under Section 1296 of the Code (a "**Mark-to-Market Election**") with respect to Common Shares or Rights Shares (as described below, a QEF Election will not be available with respect to the Rights). A U.S. Holder that does not make either a QEF Election or a Mark-to-Market Election will be referred to in this summary as a "**Non-Electing U.S. Holder**".

A Non-Electing U.S. Holder will be subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code with respect to (a) any gain recognized on the sale or other taxable disposition of Common Shares, Rights and Rights Shares and (b) any excess distribution received on the Common Shares and Rights Shares. A distribution generally will be an "excess distribution" to the extent that such distribution (together with all other distributions received in the current tax year) exceeds 125% of the average distributions received during the three preceding tax years (or during a U.S. Holder's holding period for the Common Shares and Rights Shares, if shorter).

Under Section 1291 of the Code, any gain recognized on the sale or other taxable disposition of Common Shares, Rights and Rights Shares (including an indirect disposition of the stock of any Subsidiary PFIC), and any excess distribution received on such Common Shares and Rights Shares (or a distribution by a Subsidiary PFIC to its shareholder that is deemed to be received by a U.S. Holder) must be ratably allocated to each day in a Non-Electing U.S. Holder's holding period for the Common Shares, Rights, or Rights Shares, as applicable. The amount of any such gain or excess distribution allocated to the tax year of disposition or distribution of the excess distribution and to years before the entity became a PFIC, if any, would be taxed as ordinary income. The amounts allocated to any other tax year would be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the highest tax rate applicable to ordinary income in each such year, and an interest charge would be imposed on the tax liability for each such year, calculated as if such tax liability had been due in each such year. A Non-Electing U.S. Holder that is not a corporation must treat any such interest paid as "personal interest," which is not deductible.

If the Corporation is a PFIC for any tax year during which a Non-Electing U.S. Holder holds Common Shares, Rights Shares or Rights, the Corporation will continue to be treated as a PFIC with respect to such Non-Electing U.S. Holder, regardless of whether the Corporation ceases to be a PFIC in one or more subsequent tax years. If the Corporation ceases to be a PFIC, a Non-Electing U.S. Holder may terminate this deemed PFIC status with respect to Common Shares and Rights Shares by electing to recognize gain (which will be taxed under the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above), but not loss, as if such Common Shares and Rights Shares were sold on the last day of the last tax year for which the Corporation was a PFIC. No such election, however, may be made with respect to Rights.

Under proposed Treasury Regulations, if a U.S. Holder has an option, warrant, or other right to acquire stock of a PFIC (such as the Rights), such option, warrant or right is considered to be PFIC stock subject to the default rules of Section 1291 of the Code. Under the rules described below, the holding period for the Rights Shares will begin on the date a U.S. Holder acquires the Rights. This will impact the availability of the QEF Election and Mark-to-Market Election with respect to the Rights Shares. Thus, a U.S. Holder will have to account for Rights Shares and Common Shares under the PFIC rules and the applicable elections differently. See discussion below under "QEF Election" and under "Mark-to-Market Election".

QEF Election

A U.S. Holder that makes a timely QEF Election for the first tax year in which its holding period of its Common Shares begins, generally, will not be subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above with respect to its Common Shares. A U.S. Holder that makes a timely QEF Election will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such U.S. Holder's pro rata share of (a) the net capital gain of the Corporation, which will be taxed as long-term capital gain to such U.S. Holder, and (b) the ordinary earnings of the Corporation, which will be taxed as ordinary income to such U.S. Holder. Generally, "net capital gain" is the excess of (a) net long-term capital gain over (b) net short-term capital loss, and "ordinary earnings" are the excess of (a) "earnings and profits" over (b) net capital gain. A U.S. Holder that makes a QEF Election will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such amounts for each tax year in which the Corporation is a PFIC, regardless of whether such amounts are actually distributed to such U.S. Holder by the Corporation. However, for any tax year in which the Corporation is a PFIC and has no net income or gain, U.S. Holders that have made a QEF Election has an income inclusion, such a U.S. Holder may, subject to certain limitations, elect to defer payment of current U.S. federal income tax on such amounts, subject to certain limitations, elect to defer payment of current U.S. federal income tax on such amounts, subject to an interest charge. If such U.S. Holder is not a corporation, any such interest paid will be treated as "personal interest," which is not deductible.

- 33 -

A U.S. Holder that makes a timely QEF Election with respect to the Corporation generally (a) may receive a tax-free distribution from the Corporation to the extent that such distribution represents "earnings and profits" of the Corporation that were previously included in income by the U.S. Holder because of such QEF Election and (b) will adjust such U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Common Shares to reflect the amount included in income or allowed as a tax-free distribution because of such QEF Election. In addition, a U.S. Holder that makes a QEF Election generally will recognize capital gain or loss on the sale or other taxable disposition of Common Shares.

The procedure for making a QEF Election, and the U.S. federal income tax consequences of making a QEF Election, will depend on whether such QEF Election is timely. A QEF Election will be treated as "timely" if such QEF Election is made for the first year in the U.S. Holder's holding period for the Common Shares in which the Corporation was a PFIC. A U.S. Holder may make a timely QEF Election by filing the appropriate QEF Election documents at the time such U.S. Holder files a U.S. federal income tax return for such year. If a U.S. Holder does not make a timely QEF Election for the first year in the U.S. Holder's holding period for the Common Shares, the U.S. Holder may still be able to make a timely QEF Election in a subsequent year if such U.S. Holder also makes a "purging" election to recognize gain (which will be taxed under the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above) as if such Common Shares were sold for their fair market value on the day the QEF Election is effective.

A timely QEF Election will apply to the tax year for which such QEF Election is made and to all subsequent tax years, unless such QEF Election is invalidated or terminated or the IRS consents to revocation of such QEF Election. If a U.S. Holder makes a QEF Election and, in a subsequent tax year, the Corporation ceases to be a PFIC, the QEF Election will remain in effect (although it will not be applicable) during those tax years in which the Corporation is not a PFIC. Accordingly, if the Corporation becomes a PFIC in another subsequent tax year, the QEF Election will be effective and the U.S. Holder will be subject to the QEF rules described above during any subsequent tax year in which the Corporation qualifies as a PFIC.

Under proposed Treasury Regulations, if a U.S. Holder has an option, warrant or other right to acquire stock of a PFIC (such as the Rights), such option, warrant or right is considered to be PFIC stock subject to the default rules of Section 1291 of the Code. However, a holder of an option, warrant or other right to acquire stock of a PFIC may not make a QEF Election that will apply to the option, warrant or other right to acquire PFIC stock. In addition, under proposed Treasury Regulations, if a U.S. Holder holds an option, warrant or other right to acquire stock of a PFIC, the holding period with respect to shares of stock of the PFIC acquired upon exercise of such option, warrant or other right will include the period that the option, warrant or other right was held.

Consequently, if a U.S. Holder of Common Shares makes a QEF Election, such election generally will not be treated as a timely QEF Election with respect to Rights Shares and the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above will continue to apply with respect to such U.S. Holder's Rights Shares. However, a U.S. Holder of Rights Shares should be eligible to make a timely QEF Election if such U.S. Holder elects in the tax year in which such Rights Shares are received to recognize gain (which will be taxed under the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above) as if such Rights Shares were sold for fair market value on the date such U.S. Holder acquired them. In addition, gain recognized on the sale or other taxable disposition (other than by exercise) of the Rights by a U.S. Holder will be

subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the application of the PFIC rules to the Common Shares, Rights, and Rights Shares.

U.S. Holders should be aware that there can be no assurances that the Corporation will satisfy the record keeping requirements that apply to a QEF, or that the Corporation will supply U.S. Holders with information that such U.S. Holders require to report under the QEF rules, in the event that the Corporation is a PFIC and a U.S. Holder wishes to make a QEF Election. Thus, U.S. Holders may not be able to make a QEF Election with respect to their Common Shares and with respect to the shares in any Subsidiary PFICs. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the availability of, and procedure for making, a QEF Election.

- 34 -

A U.S. Holder makes a QEF Election by attaching a completed IRS Form 8621, including a PFIC Annual Information Statement, to a timely filed U.S. federal income tax return. However, if the Corporation does not provide the required information with regard to the Corporation or any of its Subsidiary PFICs, U.S. Holders will not be able to make a QEF Election for such entity and will continue to be subject to the rules discussed above that apply to Non-Electing U.S. Holders with respect to the taxation of gains and excess distributions.

Mark-to -Market Election

A U.S. Holder may make a Mark-to-Market Election only if the Common Shares and Rights Shares are marketable stock. The Common Shares and Rights Shares generally will be "marketable stock" if the Common Shares and Rights Shares are regularly traded on (a) a national securities exchange that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, (b) the national market system established pursuant to section 11A of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, or (c) a foreign securities exchange that is regulated or supervised by a governmental authority of the country in which the market is located, provided that (i) such foreign exchange has trading volume, listing, financial disclosure, and other requirements and the laws of the country in which such foreign exchange is located, together with the rules of such foreign exchange, ensure that such requirements are actually enforced and (ii) the rules of such foreign exchange or other market, such stock generally will be "regularly traded" for any calendar year during which such stock is traded, other than in de minimis quantities, on at least 15 days during each calendar quarter.

A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election with respect to its Common Shares generally will not be subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above with respect to such Common Shares. However, if a U.S. Holder does not make a Mark-to-Market Election beginning in the first tax year of such U.S. Holder's holding period for the Common Shares or such U.S. Holder has not made a timely QEF Election, the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above will apply to certain dispositions of, and distributions on, the Common Shares.

Any Mark-to-Market Election made by a U.S. Holder for the Common Shares will also apply to such U.S. Holder's Rights Shares. As a result, if a Mark-to-Market Election has been made by a U.S. Holder with respect to Common Shares, any Rights Shares received will automatically be marked-to-market in the year of exercise. Because a U.S. Holder's holding period for Rights Shares includes the period during which such U.S. Holder held the Rights, a U.S. Holder will be treated as making a Mark-to-Market Election with respect to its Rights Shares after the beginning of such U.S. Holder's holding period for the Rights Shares unless the Rights Shares are acquired in the same tax year as the year in which the U.S. Holder received its Rights. Consequently, the default rules under Section 1291 described above generally will apply to the mark-to-market gain realized in the tax year in which Rights Shares are received. However, the general mark-to-market rules will apply to subsequent tax years.

A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election will include in ordinary income, for each tax year in which the Corporation is a PFIC, an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (a) the fair market value of the Common Shares and

any Rights Shares, as of the close of such tax year over (b) such U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Common Shares and any Rights Shares. A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election will be allowed a deduction in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (i) such U.S. Holder's adjusted tax basis in the Common Shares and any Rights Shares, over (ii) the fair market value of such Common Shares and any Rights Shares (but only to the extent of the net amount of previously included income as a result of the Mark-to-Market Election for prior tax years).

A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election generally also will adjust such U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Common Shares and Rights Shares to reflect the amount included in gross income or allowed as a deduction because of such Mark-to-Market Election. In addition, upon a sale or other taxable disposition of Common Shares and Rights Shares, a U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election will recognize ordinary income or ordinary loss (not to exceed the excess, if any, of (a) the amount included in ordinary income because of such Mark-to-Market Election for prior tax years over (b) the amount allowed as a deduction because of such Mark-to-Market Election for prior tax years).

A U.S. Holder makes a Mark-to-Market Election by attaching a completed IRS Form 8621 to a timely filed U.S. federal income tax return. A Mark-to-Market Election applies to the tax year in which such Mark-to-Market Election is made and to each subsequent tax year, unless the Common Shares and Rights Shares cease to be "marketable stock" or the IRS consents to revocation of such election. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the availability of, and procedure for making, a Mark-to-Market Election.

- 35 -

Although a U.S. Holder may be eligible to make a Mark-to-Market Election with respect to the Common Shares and Rights Shares, no such election may be made with respect to the stock of any Subsidiary PFIC that a U.S. Holder is treated as owning because such stock is not marketable. Hence, the Mark-to-Market Election will not be effective to eliminate the application of the default rules of Section 1291 of the Code described above with respect to deemed dispositions of Subsidiary PFIC stock or distributions from a Subsidiary PFIC.

Other PFIC Rules

Under Section 1291(f) of the Code, the IRS has issued proposed Treasury Regulations that, subject to certain exceptions, would cause a U.S. Holder that had not made a timely QEF Election to recognize gain (but not loss) upon certain transfers of Common Shares and Rights Shares that would otherwise be tax-deferred (e.g., gifts and exchanges pursuant to corporate reorganizations). However, the specific U.S. federal income tax consequences to a U.S. Holder may vary based on the manner in which Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares are transferred.

Certain additional adverse rules will apply with respect to a U.S. Holder if the Corporation is a PFIC, regardless of whether such U.S. Holder makes a QEF Election. For example under Section 1298(b)(6) of the Code, a U.S. Holder that uses Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares as security for a loan will, except as may be provided in Treasury Regulations, be treated as having made a taxable disposition of such Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares.

In addition, a U.S. Holder who acquires Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares from a decedent will not receive a "step up" in tax basis of such Common Shares, Rights or Rights Shares to fair market value.

Special rules also apply to the amount of foreign tax credit that a U.S. Holder may claim on a distribution from a PFIC. Subject to such special rules, foreign taxes paid with respect to any distribution in respect of stock in a PFIC are generally eligible for the foreign tax credit. The rules relating to distributions by a PFIC and their eligibility for the foreign tax credit are complicated, and a U.S. Holder should consult with their own tax advisors regarding the availability of the foreign tax credit with respect to distributions by a PFIC.

The PFIC rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the PFIC rules and how the PFIC rules may affect the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Common Shares, Rights and Rights Shares.

Taxation of Common Shares

The following discussion is subject to the rules described above under the heading "Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules".

Taxation of Distributions

A U.S. Holder that receives a distribution, including a constructive distribution, with respect to a Common Share will be required to include the amount of such distribution in gross income as a dividend (without reduction for any non-U.S. income tax withheld from such distribution) to the extent of the current or accumulated "earnings and profits" of the Corporation, as computed for U.S. federal income tax purposes. To the extent that a distribution exceeds the current and accumulated "earnings and profits" of the Corporation, such distribution will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of a U.S. Holder's tax basis in the Common Shares and thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of such Common Shares (see "Taxation of Common Shares - Sale or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Shares" below). However, the Corporation may not maintain the calculations of earnings and profits in accordance with U.S. federal income tax principles, and each U.S. Holder should therefore assume that any distribution by the Corporation with respect to the Common Shares will constitute ordinary dividend income. Dividends received on Common Shares generally will not constitute qualified dividend income eligible for the "dividends received deduction". Subject to applicable limitations and provided the Corporation is eligible for the benefits of the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention, dividends paid by the Corporation to non-corporate U.S. Holders, including individuals, generally will be eligible for the preferential tax rates applicable to long-term capital gains for dividends, provided certain holding period and other conditions are satisfied, including that the Corporation not be classified as a PFIC in the tax year of distribution or in the preceding tax year. The dividend rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the application of such rules.

- 36 -

Sale or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Shares

A U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss on the sale or other taxable disposition of Common Shares in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (a) the amount of cash plus the fair market value of any property received and (b) such U.S. Holder's tax basis in such Common Shares sold or otherwise disposed of. Any such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss, which will be long-term capital gain or loss if, at the time of the sale or other disposition, such Common Shares are held for more than one year.

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed above, preferential tax rates apply to long-term capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is an individual, estate, or trust. There are currently no preferential tax rates for long-term capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is a corporation. Deductions for capital losses are subject to significant limitations under the Code.

Additional Considerations

Receipt of Foreign Currency

The amount of any distribution paid to a U.S. Holder in foreign currency, or on the receipt, exercise, termination or disposition of Rights and the ownership and disposition of Common Shares, generally will be equal to the U.S. dollar value of such foreign currency based on the exchange rate applicable on the date of receipt (regardless of whether such foreign currency is converted into U.S. dollars at that time). A U.S. Holder will have a basis in the foreign currency equal to its U.S. dollar value on the date of receipt. Any U.S. Holder who converts or otherwise disposes of the foreign currency after the date of receipt may have a foreign currency exchange gain or loss that would be treated as ordinary income or loss, and generally will be U.S. source income or loss for foreign tax credit purposes. Different rules apply to U.S. Holders who use the accrual method with respect to foreign currency received upon the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of the Rights or Common Shares. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own U.S. tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of receiving, owning, and disposing of foreign currency.

Foreign Tax Credit

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed above, a U.S. Holder that pays (whether directly or through withholding) Canadian income tax with respect to dividends paid on the Common Shares generally will be entitled, at the election of such U.S. Holder, to receive either a deduction or a credit for such Canadian income tax paid. Generally, a credit will reduce a U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability on a dollar-for-dollar basis, whereas a deduction will

reduce a U.S. Holder's income subject to U.S. federal income tax. This election is made on a year-by-year basis and applies to all foreign taxes paid (whether directly or through withholding) by a U.S. Holder during a year.

Complex limitations apply to the foreign tax credit, including the general limitation that the credit cannot exceed the proportionate share of a U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability that such U.S. Holder's "foreign source" taxable income bears to such U.S. Holder's worldwide taxable income. In applying this limitation, a U.S. Holder's various items of income and deduction must be classified, under complex rules, as either "foreign source" or "U.S. source". Generally, dividends paid by a foreign corporation should be treated as foreign source for this purpose, and gains recognized on the sale of stock of a foreign corporation by a U.S. Holder should be treated as U.S. source for this purpose, except as otherwise provided in an applicable income tax treaty, and if an election is properly made under the Code. However, the amount of a distribution with respect to the Common Shares that is treated as a "dividend" may be lower for U.S. federal income tax purposes than it is for Canadian federal income tax purposes, resulting in a reduced foreign tax credit allowance to a U.S. Holder. In addition, this limitation is calculated separately with respect to specific categories of income. The foreign tax credit rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own U.S. tax advisors regarding the foreign tax credit rules.

- 37 -

Additional Tax on Passive Income

Certain U.S. Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts (other than trusts that are exempt from tax) will be subject to a 3.8% tax on all or a portion of their "net investment income," which includes dividends on the Common Shares, and net gains from the disposition of the Rights or Common Shares. Further, excess distributions treated as dividends, gains treated as excess distributions, and mark-to-market inclusions and deductions are all included in the calculation of net investment income.

Treasury Regulations provide, subject to the election described in the following paragraph, that solely for purposes of this additional tax, that distributions of previously taxed income will be treated as dividends and included in net investment income subject to the additional 3.8% tax. Additionally, to determine the amount of any capital gain from the sale or other taxable disposition of Rights or Common Shares that will be subject to the additional tax on net investment income, a U.S. Holder who has made a QEF Election will be required to recalculate its basis in the Common Shares excluding QEF basis adjustments.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder may make an election which will be effective with respect to all interests in controlled foreign corporations and QEFs held in that year or acquired in future years. Under this election, a U.S. Holder pays the additional 3.8% tax on QEF income inclusions and on gains calculated after giving effect to related tax basis adjustments. U.S. Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts should consult their own tax advisors regarding the applicability of this tax to any of their income or gains in respect of the Rights and Common Shares.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

Under U.S. federal income tax law and Treasury Regulations, certain categories of U.S. Holders must file information returns with respect to their investment in, or involvement in, a foreign corporation. For example, recently enacted legislation generally imposes new U.S. return disclosure obligations (and related penalties) on individuals who are U.S. Holders that hold certain specified foreign financial assets in excess of certain threshold amounts. The definition of specified foreign financial assets includes not only financial accounts maintained in foreign financial institutions, but also, unless held in accounts maintained by certain financial institutions, any stock or security issued by a non-U.S. person, any financial instrument or contract held for investment that has an issuer or counterparty other than a U.S. person and any interest in a foreign entity. U. S. Holders may be subject to these reporting requirements unless their Rights or Common Shares are held in an account at certain financial institutions. Penalties for failure to file certain of these information returns are substantial. U.S. Holders should consult with their own tax advisors regarding the requirements of filing information returns.

Payments made within the U.S. or by a U.S. payor or U.S. middleman, of dividends on Common Shares, and proceeds arising from the sale or other taxable disposition of, Rights or Common Shares will generally be subject to information reporting and backup withholding tax, at the rate of 28%, if a U.S. Holder (a) fails to furnish such U.S. Holder's correct U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number and that the IRS has not notified such U.S. Holder has furnished its correct U.S. taxpayer identification number and that the IRS has not notified such U.S. Holder that it is subject to backup withholding tax. However, certain exempt persons generally are excluded from these information reporting and backup withholding rules. Any amounts withheld under the U.S. backup withholding tax rules will be allowed as a credit against a U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, or will be refunded, if such U.S. Holder furnishes required information to the IRS in a timely manner.

The discussion of reporting requirements set forth above is not intended to constitute an exhaustive description of all reporting requirements that may apply to a U.S. Holder. A failure to satisfy certain reporting requirements may result in an extension of the time period during which the IRS can assess a tax, and under certain circumstances, such an extension may apply to assessments of amounts unrelated to any unsatisfied reporting requirement. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the information reporting and backup withholding rules.

- 38 -

STATUTORY RIGHTS

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides security holders of the Corporation with, in addition to any other rights they may have at law, rights of rescission or to damages, or both, if there is a misrepresentation in a circular or a notice that is required to be delivered to those security holders. However, such rights must be exercised within the prescribed time limits. Security holders should refer to the applicable provisions of securities legislation of the province of residence for particulars of those rights, or consult with a lawyer.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Further information regarding the Corporation, its activities and its financial results may be found in the Corporation's continuous disclosure documents, copies of which can be obtained on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

- 39 -

INQUIRIES

By Telephone:

North American Toll Free: 1-800-564-6253

Outside North America: 1-514-982-7555

By E-Mail to:

corporateactions@computershare.com

By Hand, Courier or Registered Mail to:

Computershare Investor Services Inc.

100 University Avenue

8th Floor

Toronto, Ontario

M5J 2Y1

Attention: Corporate Actions

By Regular Mail to:

Computershare Investor Services Inc.

P.O. Box 7021

31 Adelaide Street East

Toronto, Ontario

M5C 3H2

Attention: Corporate Actions

- 40 -

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED TO BE SENT TO SHAREHOLDERS

EXHIBITS.

The Exhibits to this Registration Statement are:

Exhibit Number	Exhibit
1.1*	Standby Guarantee Agreement
3.1	Consent of Bennett Jones LLP

* Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 6-K on February 19, 2015 and incorporated by reference herein.

PART III

CONSENT TO SERVICE OF PROCESS

Not applicable.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form F-7 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Toronto, Ontario, Canada on February 19, 2015.

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.

By: /s/ Patrick Evans Patrick Evans

> Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed below by or on behalf of the following persons in the capacities indicated, on February 19, 2015.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Bruce Ramsden Bruce Ramsden	Chief Financial Officer and VP Finance	February 19, 2015
/s/ Jonathan C.J. Comerford Jonathan C.J. Comerford	Chairman and Director	February 19, 2015
/s/ Patrick Evans Patrick Evans	Director	February 19, 2015
/s/ David Whittle David Whittle	Director	February 19, 2015
/s/ Peeyush Varshney Peeyush Varshney	Director	February 19, 2015
/s/ Carl G. Verley Carl G. Verley	Director	February 19, 2015

/s/ Bruce Dresner Bruce Dresner Director

February 19, 2015

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 6(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended, the Authorized Representative has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, solely in its capacity as the duly authorized representative of the Registrant in the United States on February 19, 2015.

By: /s/ Patrick Evans Patrick Evans Chief Executive Officer

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBITS.

The Exhibits to this Registration Statement are:

Exhibit
NumberExhibit1.1*Standby Guarantee Agreement3.1Consent of Bennett Jones LLP

* Previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 6-K on February 19, 2015 and incorporated by reference herein.